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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
AEER (&)
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE YEAR 2019
“E-NEFRE

Revenue decreased 0.5% to approximately HK$2,043.1 million
(2018: approximately HK$2,052.7 million).

Gross profit increased 6.6% to approximately HK$496.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$465.3 million).

Gross profit margin increased 1.6 percentage points to 24.3%
(2018: 22.7%).

Operating profit is approximately HK$126.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$128.7 million) and the profit attributable to
owners of the Company is approximately HK$97.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$100.2 million).

A proposed final dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 of HK3.0 cents per share of the Company (the
“Share”) was recommended, together with the interim dividend
of HK1.5 cents per Share, representing a total of HK4.5 cents per
Share (2018: HK7.0 cents per Share) and the dividend payout ratio
of 33.3% (2018: 50.4%).
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFHMBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mE¥EE

Years ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RE ZRE-RF ZE-HF 2N\ ZE-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FET FET TERT
Revenue WA 1,710,885 1,698,005 1,863,559 2,052,708 2,043,095

(Loss)/profit before REtFTE R A

income tax (B18) /% T (199,299) 191,439 143,248 130,931 127,102
Income tax expenses BT RiG & (26,839) (42,355) (34,408) (34,850) (35,022)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR), &N (226,138) 149,084 108,840 96,081 92,080

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
mERE EmERkAE

As at 31 December

R+=B=t+—-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—T-AF —E-RF —E—+F —T-N\F —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHL FEL FET THET
ASSETS EBE

Non-current assets ERBEE 546,604 331,064 380,180 467,444 569,549
Current assets FEAE 1,075,041 1,322,931 1,269,650 1,237,607 1,269,396
Total assets BERT 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExZRER
Total equity ey 1,011,378 975,036 1,060,440 1,090,530 1,130,906
Non-current liabilities EnEaRE 22,179 2,612 2,792 10,339 17,905
Current liabilities FEHaE 588,088 676,347 586,598 604,182 690,134
Total liabilities BERSE 610,267 678,959 589,390 614,521 708,039
Total equity and liabilities BESREE 1,621,645 1,653,995 1,649,830 1,705,051 1,838,945
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KEY SHAREHOLDER VALUE INDICES
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

According to the recent publication by UN World Tourism
Organization (“UNWTO"), the growth of international tourist arrivals
in 2019 was slower as compared with the previous two years. The
slowdown affected mainly advanced economies and particularly
Europe, Asia and the Pacific.

In addition to the slowing down in tourism, the China-U.S. trade war
and the rising concerns to environmental protection leading to the
changes in related laws and regulations around the world, these
contributed a slight decrease to the performance of the Group's core
hospitality supplies business in 2019. The Group recorded an overall
revenue of approximately HK$2,043.1 million, a 0.5% year-on-year
decrease compared to 2018 of approximately HK$2,052.7 million.
Gross profit for 2019 was approximately HK$496.3 million (2018:
approximately HK$465.3 million), a 6.6% increase compared with
2018. The gross profit margin increased by 1.6 percentage points to
24.3% (2018: 22.7%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company
stood at approximately HK$97.9 million (2018: approximately
HK$100.2 million), a 2.3% decrease compared with 2018.

Eratan

AP0

—E-NEFR

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

BRI RIR

AANEBERRABBEZRER QA (AR
ADEEMBAR (BREIAEE]) - KA
REASEBZE _T-NAF+-_HA=1+—H
LTFEZEELFERE -

REHSBEERIREASOTCHOR M —F
—NFERKREABIEREBEMFWE -
HHEETEFEREREME  CERE
M EMREKRFFRE -

BRIRBEEREZIN FEBSHEUARLBRE
¥ IRR B =X RAAEER KA 21
Al MERRBEURE B 208 IE 4 E S
EBR_Z—NFHRALH TR - NEH
BREEBIWALM43IEES L B _F
—\F 2 #2,052.78 BB T TNE0.5% ° =
E-NEZEMNHI63EEBT(ZE—N
F 465 3BEBIL) RZZFE—N\FLFA
6.6% ° EFE EF16EED2E243% (=
T—)\F :1227%) - XAREHR AEAE &
FE97 9B BB T (ZFE—/\F : £9100.28
BAL) BT N\FTH23% °

“ratan

W LOTIOA

L —,
Erulan

HYY WASH

» rﬁ;n

THTIONE

07



Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FREHE (&)

For the hospitality supplies business, the revenue was approximately
HK$1,868.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of 1.3% as compared with approximately
HK$1,892.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the Operating Supplies and Equipment ("OS&E") business, the
revenue was approximately HK$168.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of 9.1% as compared with
approximately HK$154.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Group has put a lot of effort into exploring new markets and
enhancing cost efficiencies to mitigate risks from turbulent
geopolitical events, including the China-U.S. trade war and the
protests in second half of 2019 in Hong Kong. Since extending our
production lines in Cambodia, the Group’s production capacity and
client base have been further enhanced and extended respectively.
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Looking ahead, 2020 will be a year full of challenges due to the
outbreak of pneumonia infected by the novel coronavirus (COVID-19)
(the “Epidemic”), and the continuation of the China-U.S. trade war
and other turbulent geopolitical incidents around the world. The
Epidemic has seriously affected the operation of tourism, hotel and
aviation industries around the world, and is expected to have certain
impact on the Group’s hospitality supplies business and operating
supplies and equipment business. The Group will continue to assess
the impact of the Epidemic on the Group’s financial performance and
operations and closely monitor the Group’s exposure to the risks and
uncertainties in this connection.

As part of our corporate social responsibility, the Group has
commenced the production of alcoholic instant hand sanitizers and
face masks, and offered to our community at fair and reasonable
prices, with special priority and attention to disadvantaged groups.

In a long run, we believe that the diversification in production bases
will continue to help in strengthening the Group’s competitiveness
by reducing the operating costs and increasing manufacturing
efficiencies. The Group will also continue to implement various
prudent and flexible business strategies to enhance the Group's
performance. We will also capitalise on every business opportunity on
a prudent approach and continue to stay abreast of market trends.

On behalf of the Board, | am sincerely grateful to all Shareholders,
business partners, and our dedicated and conscientious employees

and management for their continued loyalty, professionalism, and
contributions to the Group.

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN®E D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total revenue of the
Group recorded a mere decrease of 0.5% to approximately
HK$2,043.1 million compared with approximately HK$2,052.7 million
in 2018. The revenue of the hospitality supplies business was
approximately HK$1,868.4 million for the year under review, which
represented 91.4% of the Group’'s total revenue. The revenue of
OS&E business was approximately HK$168.4 million, comprising
8.2% of the Group's total revenue.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
increased 6.6% to approximately HK$496.3 million, compared with
approximately HK$465.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018. Gross profit margin increased 1.6 percentage points to 24.3%
from 22.7% as compared with the prior year, benefiting from the
depreciation of Renminbi (“RMB") and the cost efficiency brought by
production expansion in Cambodia.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 was approximately HK$97.9 million (for the year
ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$100.2 million).

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per Share attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK13.5 cents (for the year
ended 31 December 2018: HK13.9 cents).

Final dividend

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.0 cents
per Share for the year ended 31 December 2019. A sum of the
interim and final dividends is expected to be HK4.5 cents per Share
(2018: HK7.0 cents per Share). The proposed final dividend is subject
to approval at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on 27 May 2020 ("AGM").
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEEBw@mR DM (&)

Set out below are the consolidated key financial highlights of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019:

AEEBE_T-NAF+_A=1+—HLF
ERGRa TR BREBEHIWT

Year ended 31 December
BEZE+=-A=+—HBLEE
2019 2018
—B-NE ZE-)N\E

HK$ million HK$ million % Change

ER- T BEET g

Revenue WA 2,043.1 2,052.7 (0.5)%

Gross Profit EH 496.3 465.3 6.6%

Profit attributable to owners KRARIER A

of the Company JE 165 738 ) 97.9 100.2 (2.3)%

Net asset value BEFE 1,130.9 1,090.5 3.7%
Basic earnings per Share attributable RAalER AEG

to owners of the Company (HK cents) BREXRRBN CEM) 13.5 13.9 (2.9Y%
Diluted earnings per Share attributable KRNFIER AEML

to owners of the Company (HK cents) BRESERN CEM) 13.4 13.8 (2.9Y%

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management
policy and actively manages its liquidity position with standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and potential capital
demands for future development.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$348.8 million (as at 31 December
2018: approximately HK$272.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (E)

Indebtedness and gearing ratio

In September and October 2015, the Group obtained two Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") denominated mortgage loans and certain
banking facilities, which bore interest at the higher of 1.7% per
annum over one-month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") or the cost to the bank of funding the facilities, for
acquiring certain properties in Hong Kong. In January 2019, the
Group further drew down US dollars (“US$"”) 3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$23.5 million) from the banking facility for its
working capital, which bore interest at the higher rate of 1.7% per
annum over one-month London Inter-bank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") or
the cost to the bank of funding the facility. As at 31 December 2019,
the outstanding bank borrowings of these mortgage loans and
banking facilities amounted to approximately HK$33.1 million (31
December 2018: approximately HK$14.6 million). As at 31 December
2019, these properties were pledged against the mortgage loans and
certain banking facilities and included in property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, with net carrying values of approximately
HK$20.4 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$50.1 million)
and approximately HK$27.4 million respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In October 2015, the Group obtained a HK$ denominated loan from
a banking facility which bore interest at 1.7% per annum over
one-month HIBOR for its working capital. In January 2018 and
January 2019, the Group further drew down HK$20 million and US$3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$23.5 million), respectively for
its working capital. These bank borrowings are from the banking
facility which bore interest at 1.7% per annum over one-month
HIBOR and LIBOR respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding bank borrowings of this facility amounted to
approximately HK$31.7 million (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$20.0 million). This banking facility was secured by property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, with net carrying values of approximately
HK$0.8 million (31 December 2018: approximately HK$3.4 million)
and approximately HK$2.2 million respectively.

On 31 May 2019, the Group completed an acquisition of a
subsidiary, Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. (“Wayoutokushin”). As a result,
the Group assumed three secured bank borrowings of approximately
Japanese Yen (“JPY") 12.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$0.9 million). As at 31 December 2019, the outstanding secured
bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$0.7 million, and
bore interest rates of 1.3%, 1.3% and 1.4% per annum respectively.
These bank borrowings were secured by personal guarantee of a
non-controlling interest of Wayoutokushin.

As a result of the acquisition, the Group also assumed a secured
other borrowing of approximately JPY14.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.1 million) at interest rate of 1.16% per annum
for the working capital of Wayoutokushin on 31 May 2019. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding secured other borrowing amounted
to approximately HK$0.9 million. This borrowing was secured by
personal guarantee of a non-controlling interest of Wayoutokushin.

Details of the borrowings are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2019, calculated on the basis of
borrowings over total equity, was 5.9% as compared with 3.2% as
at 31 December 2018.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to RMB. The Group
currently does not deploy a foreign currency hedging policy.

The Group primarily sourced its raw materials in the PRC. The related

currency exposure with respect to RMB is managed through
increasing sales denominated in the same currency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEBSwmR DM (E)

Charges on Group assets

As at 31 December 2019, certain subsidiaries of the Company
pledged assets with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$50.8 million (as at 31 December 2018: approximately HK$53.6
million) to secure drawn bank borrowings.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

Details of the capital commitments is set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hospitality Supplies Business

According to the recent publication by UNWTO, there were 1.5
billion international tourist arrivals globally in 2019, which was a 4%
increase compared to arrivals in 2018. Despite all regions seeing a
rise in total tourist arrivals, growth in 2019 was still low compared
with the exceptionally high rates from 2017 and 2018. The advanced
economies were the most affected by the slowdown of tourism,
particularly in Europe, Asia and the Pacific, together with the
continuing geopolitical tensions, including uncertainty surrounding
the China-U.S. trade war, Brexit, protests in second half of 2019 in
Hong Kong, and the riding trend of environmental protection and
“plastic free” driving the changes in related laws and regulations
around the world, the revenue from the Group’s hospitality supplies
business for the year ended 31 December 2019 decreased 1.3% to
approximately HK$1,868.4 million (for the year ended 31 December
2018: approximately HK$1,892.9 million), which contributed 91.4%
(2018: 92.2%) to the Group’s total revenue. Gross profit from the
hospitality supplies business increased 7.1% to approximately
HK$450.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the year
ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$420.9 million). The
segment’s gross profit margin increased 1.9 percentage points to
24.1%, compared with 22.2% for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue of the hospitality supplies business from the PRC decreased
2.6% to approximately HK$614.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$630.3 million), representing 32.9% (2018: 33.3%)
of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue. Revenue from
Hong Kong increased 6.9% to approximately HK$300.2 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$280.9 million),
which accounted for 16.1% (2018: 14.8%) of the hospitality supplies
business segment revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue from North America
was approximately HK$393.0 million (for the year ended 31
December 2018: approximately HK$411.3 million), and accounted for
21.0% (2018: 21.7%) of the hospitality supplies business segment
revenue. Revenue from the European market was approximately
HK$232.3 million (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$240.5 million) and accounted for 12.4% (2018:
12.7%) of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue.
Revenue from the other Asia Pacific regions was approximately
HK$285.3 million (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$277.4 million), which comprised 15.3% (2018:
14.7%) of the hospitality supplies business segment revenue.
Revenue from Australia was approximately HK$39.6 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$48.6 million),
contributing 2.1% (2018: 2.6%) of the hospitality supplies business
segment revenue.

Hospitality supplies business segment revenue by
geographical location
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group expanded the
scale of its production in Cambodia to lessen the impact of the
China-U.S. trade war and stabilise the performance of its hospitality
supplies business. The Group believes that extending new hospitality
supplies production lines in Cambodia in future will reduce overall
production costs, as well as increase the Group’s market share in
Cambodia and other Southeast Asian countries.

Operating Supplies and Equipment Business

Benefiting from the growing number of hotel projects in the other
markets, revenue from the Group’s OS&E business increased to
approximately HK$168.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing an increase of 9.1% as compared with
approximately HK$154.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2018, and contributing 8.2% (2018: 7.5%) to the Group’s total
revenue. Gross profit from the OS&E business increased by 10.7% to
approximately HK$40.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, compared with approximately HK$36.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The segment’s gross profit margin slightly
increased 0.3 percentage point to 23.9% for the year ended 31
December 2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018: 23.6%).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, OS&E business revenue from
the PRC decreased 2.3% to approximately HK$102.1 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$104.5 million),
representing 60.6% (2018: 67.8%) of the OS&E business segment
revenue. Revenue from the other markets was approximately
HK$66.3 million (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$49.8 million), accounted for 39.4% (2018: 32.2%)
of the OS&E business segment revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

OS&E business segment revenue by geographical
location

2019
—E—0E

® The PRC A

The re-order frequency from long-term customers will be a key
revenue factor for OS&E business, as such, the Group will continue
to focus on building long-term cooperative relationships with its
customers by providing vertically-integrated services for hotel
products purchasing in a long run. Additionally, the Group will also
continue to grow its customer base among newly established,
high-end and mid-level hotels in China and other Southeast Asian
countries.

OUTLOOK

Proactive monitoring of external risks and weakened
global markets

In addition to pressure from the ongoing China-U.S. trade war, the
protests in the second half of 2019 in Hong Kong, and further with
the outbreak of COVID-19, the tourism, hospitality and aviation
industries were seriously affected. With an even greater decline in
both the global and domestic economies, and in international tourist
arrivals ahead in 2020, we expect that there will be certain impact on
the Group’s hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses from 2020
onwards. We will continue to assess the Group'’s financial
performance and operations and closely monitor the Group’s
exposure to risks and uncertainties in this connection.
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EERBSwmR DM (&)

Disposable Infection Control Products and Personal
Health Care Products Business

We have been producing the disposable infection control products,
such as the medical equipment cover, and the personal health care
products under our self-labeled brands “Pasion” and “everybody
LABO". After the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has switched
some of the production lines to produce anti-epidemic products and
has commenced the production of alcoholic instant hand sanitizers
and face masks. In response to the increasing worldwide market
demand and consciousness of personal hygiene of the general public,
the Group will further expand its product lines and contribute
resources to cover more disposable infection control products and
personal health care related products.

Strategic diversification of manufacturing footprint

In order to reduce further potential impacts of the China-U.S. trade
war, the Group will continue to develop its production base in
Cambodia to reinforce its overall competitiveness through reducing
labour costs and increase manufacturing efficiencies.

Continued focus on margin improvement

By increasing production efficiencies and adopting prudent and
flexible business strategies to enhance the performance, the Group
will continue to work on improving its margins to face the
uncertainties ahead. Furthermore, the Group will continue to improve
the performance of its hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses, and
expand its manufacturing facilities in Cambodia.

Continued exploration of new business opportunities

By capitalising on the Group's existing partnerships and closely and
cautiously monitoring potential new business streams and strategies,
the Group will continue to put effort on expanding the market shares
of its hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses to reduce the impact
from the China-U.S. trade war, the outbreak of COVID-19 and other
geopolitical incidents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

New environmental protection laws and regulations

On the other hand, the Group’s hospitality supplies business is
expected to face additional challenges due to new environmental
protection laws and regulations and the rising “plastic free” trend
around the world. Some of the countries and cities, especially in
Europe and the PRC, are adjusting their regulations and practices to
encourage businesses and hotels to eliminate plastic and disposable
products, including single-use plastic bottles, plastic drink stirrers and
many more items. In response, the Group will allocate resources to
research and development of new eco-friendly hospitality supplies
products appropriately, and keep abreast of market trends, and
strengthen its core competitiveness.

The impacts of COVID-19 outbreak

The impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s customers’
financial positions and the macro-economic conditions as a whole are
still uncertain, thus the Group is unable to quantify the related
financial effects. However, it is noted that the purchase orders of the
Group’s hospitality supplies and OS&E businesses has dropped as
compared with the corresponding period of 2019. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 and perform
further assessment on its impact and take relevant measures.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The total number of employees of the Group, including short-term
contract workers, was approximately 5,200 as at 31 December 2019.
The employee benefit expenses including Directors’ emoluments were
approximately HK$481.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The remuneration of employees (including the Directors) of the
Group are generally structured by reference to market terms and
individual merits, which is reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
also provides various other benefits to designated staff, including
discretionary bonus, social insurance or medical insurance, share
option scheme, share award scheme, continuing education and
training programmes. The Group also launched key performance
indicators assessment scheme and commendation annual award
scheme to boost individual performance and operational efficiency.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHING Chi Fai, aged 58, is an Executive Director and Chairman
of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee, the Executive Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai is also a founder of the Group. He has been
responsible for sales and marketing, production of the products and the
formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies
of the Group. Mr. CHING Chi Fai has over 30 years of experience in
the hospitality supplies industry. Mr. CHING Chi Keung is a brother of
Mr. CHING Chi Fai and Mr. CHING Tsun Wabh is the son of Mr. CHING Chi
Fai.

Mr. CHING Chi Keung, aged 55, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. CHING Chi
Keung joined the Group with the founders. He has been responsible for
human resources and administrative matters of the Group. Mr. CHING
Chi Keung has over 30 years of experience in the hospitality supplies
industry. Mr. CHING Chi Fai is a brother of Mr. CHING Chi Keung and
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

Mr. LIU Zigang, aged 54, is an Executive Director of the Company since
2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. LIU has been
responsible for sales and marketing since he joined the Group in May
1995. He oversees direct sales in the Greater China Region as well as the
Southeast Asia markets. Mr. LIU has over 20 years of experience in the
hospitality supplies industry. He obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration in Centenary College of New Jersey, USA in 2011. Mr. LIU
also holds a diploma from Shenzhen University, the PRC and completed
a course on International Business Management of Tsinghua University
organised by Yangtze Delta Region Institute of Tsinghua University, the
PRC.

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah, aged 38, is an Executive Director of the Company
since 2014. He is a member of the Executive Committee of the Company,
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and the business
development director of the Group. He joined the Group since 2006 to
assist in production and has been actively involved in both the business
and product development of the Group. Mr. CHING Tsun Wah has
extensive experience in the hospitality supplies industry. He graduated in
Seneca College Toronto of Canada in marketing administration in 2003.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai and a nephew of
Mr. CHING Chi Keung.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung, aged 47, is an Executive Director of the
Company since 2014. He is the Chief Financial Officer, the Company
Secretary, a member of the Executive Committee and the Investment
Committee of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. KEUNG joined the Group in July 2010 and he is
responsible for finance and accounting matters. He has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial management. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. KEUNG is an independent non-executive director of Milestone Builder
Holdings Limited and Acme International Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching, aged 52, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 2015. She is a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 1995 and was responsible for sales and
marketing and oversaw export sales to overseas markets. She was an
Executive Director of the Company from 2007 to 2015. Ms. CHAN has
over 30 years of experience in the hospitality supplies industry. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked in several companies engaged in
hospitality supplies business.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan, aged 65, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. HUNG has over 30 years of senior management experience
in managing hotel operations and hotel investments. He was a deputy
managing director in 1992 and an executive director from July 1997 to
January 2001 of Top Glory International Holdings Limited (“Top Glory"”),
a former Hong Kong listed company which was privatised in August
2003. During the period with Top Glory, Mr. HUNG assisted Top Glory to
develop and manage hotels/resorts. In 2005, Mr. HUNG started a hotel
development consultancy service to work with various hotel developers
and prestigious hotel chains on design and project management.

Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, aged 49, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2007. He is the chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee of the
Company. Mr. MA is a seasoned accountant with extensive experience
in risk and internal control. Mr. MA is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a Certified Internal Auditor registered with the Institute of
Internal Auditors and holder of Certification of Control Self-Assessment
of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. MA also holds various degrees
including Master of Science and Bachelor of Business Administration
conferred by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Bachelor of Laws
conferred by the University of London.
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ESNGREBAECBEFT (A)

Mr. NG Bo Kwong, aged 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company since 13 June 2013. He was a Non-Executive Director of
the Company from 9 July 2007 to 31 December 2012. He is a member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. NG has over 30 years of management experience in different
industries (including the hospitality supplies industry). He is the chairman
of the International Quality Service Management Promotion Association
and a full member of the Hong Kong Management Association. He had
assisted a number of medium to large sized enterprises in formulating
company development strategies and establishing management systems
in the areas of sales and marketing, human resources and production
management. Mr. NG is also a guest lecturer of Master of Business
Administration programs and senior executive development programs
of several universities. He had been a director of a number of non-listed
companies and is currently a director of Advance Management
Consultants Limited and Guangzhou Advance Cultural Events Limited. He
received a Master degree of Business Administration from the University
of East Asia and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Business Administration
from Tarlac State University.

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson, aged 43, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2016. He is a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He graduated with Bachelor degree of
Commerce in the University of New South Wales, Australia in July 2000.
Mr. SUN has been the managing director of Kin Hip Metal & Plastic
Factory, Limited and KINOX Trading Limited since 2006. He has been
dedicated to explore and position the products of KINOX, an international
quality manufacturer of fashionable cookware, houseware and electrical
appliances in household and catering industries, in emerging and global
markets. Mr. SUN is also the honorary and founding president of Youth
Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries (“FHKI"), the
chairman of Hong Kong Quality Brands Alliance Limited, the chairman of
The Hong Kong Plastics Manufacturers Association Limited, the founding
vice chairman and secretary general of Hong Kong 020 E-Commerce
Federation, the vice chairman of Hong Kong Q-Mark Council, the vice
chairman of The Hong Kong Exporters’ Association and a committee
member of FHKI Pearl River Delta Council. Mr. SUN dedicates his effort
on social responsibilities and practices active roles in different public
services in both Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. CHAN Yick Ning, aged 57, is the research and development director
of the Group and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. CHAN is responsible for overseeing various aspects of our chemical
production such as chemical production quality control, research and
development of product formulations, the operations of the chemical and
microbiological laboratory, the performance of the senior chemists and
technicians, quality control and research and development. Ms. CHAN
is also the vice chairman of Compliance Committee of the Group to
provide the technical expertise in various aspects to ensure the regulatory
compliance and product safety. Ms. CHAN joined the Group in 2005 and
has over 30 years of experience in cosmetics production and laboratory
operation. Ms. CHAN was awarded a Master of Science degree from
University of Warwick in 2013 and a Diploma in Management Studies
jointly by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Hong Kong
Management Association in 1992. Ms. CHAN is also a founder member
and the President of Hong Kong Society of Cosmetic Chemists, which
is in affiliate member of The International Federation of Societies of
Cosmetic Chemists.
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The Directors of Ming Fai International Holdings Limited are pleased to
present their annual report together with the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies
products and trading of operating supplies and equipment. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 156 of this annual
report.

Dividend policy

The Board intend to strike a balance between maintaining sufficient
capital to grow the business of the Group and rewarding the
Shareholders. The declaration and payment of any dividends by the
Company would be subject to the Board’s decision and any final
dividend for a financial year of the Company would be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval. The decision to declare or to pay any dividend,
and the amount of any dividends, will depend on the Group’s earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability, and any other
factors the Board may consider relevant. These factors and the payment
of dividends is at the discretion of the Board and the Board reserves
the right to change its plan on any future payment of dividends. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the laws of
Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$11,014,000 was paid on 4 October 2019, including dividend paid to
Shares held for the share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”).

The Board recommend a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per Share for
the year ended 31 December 2019. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be paid on or around 12
June 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 4 June 2020.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 22 May 2020 to Wednesday, 27 May 2020 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all documents in respect of
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 21 May
2020.

For ascertaining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 2 June 2020 to Thursday, 4 June 2020 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all documents in respect of
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 1 June
2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 07 to 09 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 19 of this annual
report.

Analysis of financial key performance indicators

The financial key performance indicators and analysis of the Group's
business are set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page 05 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 19 of this annual
report.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Risks pertaining to the reliance on direct sales customers
and distributors for the sale of products

Our hospitality supplies products are sold either by direct sales to our
customers, mainly hotels and airline operators, or to distributors for
supplying to other end-users. There is no assurance that such customers
will continue to purchase or maintain their purchase volumes of our
products in the future. In addition, there is no assurance that we will be
able to maintain business relationship with our customers. In the event that
any of our customers ceases to purchase from us or reduces the purchase
volume of orders placed with us and we are unable to obtain replacement
orders, our business and profitability may be adversely affected.
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Risks pertaining to price fluctuations of raw materials

The principal raw materials used in our production may be subject to
substantial price volatility and periodic shortages caused by external
conditions, such as fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign
exchange rates. There is no guarantee that the costs of raw materials will
be stable in the future. To the extent that we are unable to cover any
increased costs of raw materials by either reduction in other production
costs or increase of our product prices, our profits will be adversely
affected.

Operation risks

The operation of the Group is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to the respective markets. Default on the part of the Group's
customers, distributors, suppliers and business partners, and inadequacies
or failures of internal processes, people and systems or other external
factors may have various levels of negative impact on the results of
operations. Additionally, accidents may happen despite systems and
policies set up for their prevention, which may lead to finance loss,
litigation or damage in reputation.

Market risks

The Group is also subject to market risks such as currency fluctuations,
volatility of interest rates, credit risks and liquidity risks in the
normal course of the Group’s businesses. Particulars of financial risk
management of the Group are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Risks relating to compliance with laws and regulations

We are required to comply with all relevant laws and regulations
promulgated by the governments of the respective jurisdictions. There is
no assurance that the existing laws and regulations will not be changed
or additional or more stringent requirement will not be imposed,
compliance with which may cause us to incur significant expenditure.
Moreover, if we fail to comply with the present or future laws and
regulations, we may be required to pay substantial fines, suspend
production or cease operations. Consequently, our financial condition,
business and reputation may be adversely affected.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group strives to enhance governance, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and fulfill social
responsibilities in order to achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the Group.
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Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the principle of sustainable development and
fulfill corporate social responsibilities (“CSR") by applying “commercial
morality, the kindness towards people and protecting environment”.
Being one of the world’s leading suppliers of hospitality supplies
products, we comply with the laws and respect commercial morality.
We manage our operation based on the legal, compliant and reasonable
basics. We respect human rights, care for public welfare. We value
integrity and achieve win-win situation by cooperation. We follow
our philosophy of respecting morality and giving back to society. We
value resources and promote environmental protection. Relying on
scientific improvements to reduce impacts on the environment, while
we are seeking for environmental technologies to maintain sustainable
development.

The Group believes that CSR is not just about philanthropy, but also a
responsibility towards the community and being able to provide a good
platform to contribute in any way that is meaningful, fulfilling and
sustainable. CSR will remain a prominent matter in the Group’s agenda,
and environmental management is always an integral part of the Group’s
business planning and daily operations.

Details of environmental policies and performance of the Group in
2019 are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2019”, which is being prepared in accordance with “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” contained in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) and will
be published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company's website.

Key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by providing
comprehensive benefit package, career development opportunities and
internal training appropriate to individual needs. The Group provides a
healthy and safe workplace for all employees.

The Group maintains working relationships with suppliers to meet our
customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner. Our departments
work closely to make sure the tendering and procurement process is
conducted in an open, fair and just manner. The Group’s requirements
and standards are also well-communicated to suppliers.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels to understand customers’ trends and needs
and regularly analyses on customers’ feedback. The Group also conducts
comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality products and
services are offered to the customers.
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THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five years is set out in “Five Years Financial Summary” on page
05 of this annual report.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 6,087,000 Shares were issued
with proceeds of approximately HK$3,774,000 received by the Company,
due to the exercise of share options of the Company.

The Group did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 62 and Note 19 and Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,020,863,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of Association,
or the laws of the Cayman Islands, in which the Company incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson

In accordance with article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Messrs. LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun Wah, HUNG Kam Hung Allan and NG Bo
Kwong will retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Confirmation of independence of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each Independent Non-Executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that Messrs.
HUNG Kam Hung Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN
Eric Yung Tson are independent. Details are set out in the section headed
“Board responsibilities and delegation” in the “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 40 to 41.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the Directors has any
interest in any business apart from the Group’s business, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than Directors’ service contracts and employment contracts with
the Group’s senior management in full-time employment, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or in
existence during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement
is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of them constituted discloseable
non-exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code")

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

EERARAREABEERS -
HEROREEIZEZ2EZERAR

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H EFRAQF
FEEMEEEE (FRREBS RBAEGRD ([E
HFREBEGDND 2B h - BERO REERZ
AT ARBES LB EKDE352(KE
ThEzELMTHORE ETRAMEE
METAEFETESLFRXZHNERESTA) (17
PRI D BAA R R RE R A 2 s ROR R
B

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares REROREEBERG 2T
Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
NRAST &
TAREZ
HERGHA
HERHHE (Hizt1)
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests Personal (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Interests Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 31 December 2019
RZZ-NF
+=ZA=1+-H
ERITRHG
BAER ENY 53 EERER BARE (734,262,697 )
Exps (BEHEHERA) (BREER) (SRLEER) (BEZHEA) @t ZBHBED
Mr. CHING Chi Fai 16,444,000 - 197,666,200 - 214,110,200 29.16%
BEBLE (Note 2 & 3)
(Mit2k3)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 4,000,000 - 32,499,600 - 36,499,600 4.97%
REREE (Note 3)
(Hfz#3)
Mr. LIU Zigang 4,000,000 - 20,057,200 - 24,057,200 3.28%
2FmEE (Note 4)
(Hita)
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah 3,734,000 775,000 - - 4,509,000 0.61%
BERELAE (Note 5)
(Hz#5)
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung - - - 1,158,000 1,158,000 0.16%

ZEERE
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Number of
underlying
Shares held
under equity
derivatives
Number of Shares held (Note 1)
MR ARGTE
IAREZ
HERAHE
BERGER (Hiiz1)
Approximate
percentage of
Corporate issued Shares
Personal Family Interests Personal (734,262,697
Interests Interests (interests of Interests Shares)
(beneficial (interests of controlled (beneficial as at
Name of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) owner) Total 31 December 2019
R-ZE-hE
+=A=t-8
2ETR®A
BAER RikER LEER BAER (734,262,6971%)
EEpgg (BRERA) (BfREzR) (IRZEER) (BREBA) fhy ZHAESY
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching - - 32,499,600 - 32,499,600 4.43%
BRE L+ (Note 3)
(H##3)
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
FLER T A
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
Sk L E
Mr. NG Bo Kwong 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.08%
RRKTHE
Notes: Vo

1.

These underlying Shares held under equity derivatives represented the
share options granted by the Company (being regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives). Details of the share options granted
to the Directors are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report.

165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited,
which was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.

32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise Trading Limited, which
was owned as to 50%, 19.23% and 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Keung,
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching and Mr. CHING Chi Fai respectively.

20,057,200 Shares were held by Favour Power Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. LIU Zigang.

775,000 Shares were held by Ms. SO Wai Yin Tracy, the spouse of
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
had any interest or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER ABREREMALTRADTR®G
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS RHEERO ISR SE

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified R-ZE—AE+-A=+—8 SHEMESH
by any Director, the interests and short positions of the substantial BB EANEM ST NERA - KARE R EA
shareholders and other persons (other than a Director), in Shares and A+ (EFEERIN) RIHD LEBERO B EEALA
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under 1RIEZE %5 K B E K0 FE33616E T HEFHERD

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: iRz EERARWT
Long positions in Shares N ZHE
Number of Shares held
BERBEE
Approximate
percentage of
issued Shares
Corporate (734,262,697
Personal Family Corporate Corporate Interests Shares)
Interests Interests Interests Interests (interests of as at
(beneficial (interests of (beneficial (investment controlled 31 December
Name owner) spouse) owner) manager)  corporation) Total 2019
R=B-h%E
+=A=t+-H
BRTRA
BAES RkER EEER EEER EERER (734,262,6978%)
(7432 (BEAFA) (BEER) (BERBEA) (RERE) (RELEER) @i ZEHESH
Prosper Well International Limited (Note 1) - - 165,166,600 - - 165,166,600 22.49%
Prosper Well International Limited (47:#7)
Ms. LO Kit Ling (Note 1) - 214,110,200 - - - 214,110,200 29.16%
ERRR L (M)
Mr. David Michael WEBB (Note 2) 33,495,504 - - - 61,057,496 94,553,000 12.88%
David Michael WEBB% 4 (#522)
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (Note 2) - - 61,057,496 - - 61,057,496 8.32%
Preferable Situation Assets Limited (#7:22)
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (Note 3) - - 44,570,000 - - 44,570,000 6.07%
Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund (#/:#3)
Wykeham Capital Limited (Note 3) - - - 44,570,000 - 44,570,000 6.07%
Wykeham Capital Limited (#/:£3)
Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS (Note 3) - - - - 44,570,000 44,570,000 6.07%

Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMASZ 4 (#/523)
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165,166,600 Shares were held by Prosper Well International Limited, which
was wholly-owned by Mr. CHING Chi Fai (an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company). 32,499,600 Shares were held by Targetwise
Trading Limited, which was owned as to 30.77% by Mr. CHING Chi Fai.
Mr. CHING Chi Fai also beneficially held 16,444,000 Shares. Ms. LO Kit
Ling, being the spouse of Mr. CHING Chi Fai, was deemed to be interested
in the 214,110,200 Shares in which Mr. CHING Chi Fai interested.

Based on the disclosure of interests notice of Preferable Situation Assets
Limited with the date of relevant event on 10 July 2017 received by
the Company, 58,035,665 Shares were held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB,
representing 8.00% of the issued Shares as at that day. Based on the
disclosure of interests notice of Mr. David Michael WEBB with the date of
relevant event on 26 April 2018 received by the Company, 61,057,496
Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, which was
wholly-owned by Mr. David Michael WEBB, who also beneficially held
33,495,504 Shares. Save as disclosed above, no further respective
disclosure of interests notices of Mr. David Michael WEBB and Preferable
Situation Assets Limited with the date of relevant event on or before 31
December 2019 were received by the Company.

Based on the disclosure of interests notices with the date of relevant event
on 17 May 2017 received by the Company, Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys
THOMAS was deemed to be interested in the 44,570,000 Shares owned
by Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund by virtue of his 100% shareholding
interest in Wykeham Capital Limited (which was the investment manager
of Wykeham Capital Asia Value Fund). Save as disclosed above, no further
respective disclosure of interests notices of Wykeham Capital Asia Value
Fund, Wykeham Capital Limited and Mr. Howel Gruffudd Rhys THOMAS
with the date of relevant event on or before 31 December 2019 were
received by the Company.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations” of this report, as at 31
December 2019, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified by
any Director, none of the substantial shareholders and other persons
(other than a Director), had any interest or short positions in Shares and

underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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£ TN E 2K 35 516,444,000 % {5 o B2
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1R 45 K A 8] U FPreferable Situation Assets
Limited® B EH B AT —tF LA
+ B2 EZE W E B Preferable Situation
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KEBEITRD 28.00% ° R IE A 2 &M F
David Michael WEBB%E 4 X H [ £ { B £
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME B ERTE

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the ZARGR-ZZTZTL+F+AABBEKEHHEMNER
“Share Option Scheme”) on 5 October 2007. Particulars of movements  #zt2| ([BR#ETE]) - HE2E-_Z—NF+=
in the share options during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as A =+—HIFFE @ BREZEFHHBSHOT -
follows:

Number of share options
BRELR
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period Price 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RZ5-1E RZ5-1E
-A-8 t2A=t-8
ARA RERE ks fikE HRTE FREH ERfrE EREH EREY MATE
HKS
BT
Directors
F £
Mr. CHING Chi Keung 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 0 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
Bfink Z5-Z§NARA e Sl Y el = Y
ZE-NERAZTCA
Mr. LIU Zigang 04-09-2012 23-06-2013 to 22-06-2019 0.62 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - -
AFR%E “F-ZENAMA ZE-Z§/ A-fZRE
“E-NERAZTZR
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung 04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - - 579,000
ZEERE Z5-Z§NARA Z3-ZENANRE
ZEZ-ERANE
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 579,000 - - - - 579,000
ZF-ZENAMA ZE-=FNANAE
ZEZ-¥0ANR
Employees
5
In aggregate 04-09-2012 04-09-2012 to 22-06-2019 0.62 1,049,000 - (679,000) - (370,000 -
Bt ZE-Z%NAMA :2—_¢nﬂwai
ZE-NERAZTCA
04-09-2012 23-06-2013 10 22-06-2019 0.62 1,674,000 - (1,161,000) - (513,000 -
ZF-ZENAMA ZE-Z§/AZTZRE
ZE-NERAZTCR
04-09-2012 09-09-2012 to 08-09-2021 0.62 894,000 - (50,000 - - 844,000
Z3-Z§NARA Z3-ZENANRE
ZEC-ERANE
04-09-2012 09-09-2013 to 08-09-2021 0.62 894,000 - (50,000) - - 844,000
ZF-ZENAMA ZE-ZFNANAE
ZEZ-¥0ANR
04-09-2012 04-09-2013 t0 03-09-2022 0.62 298,500 - (73,500) - - 225,000
Z3-Z§NARA Z3-ZENARAE
“E-Z%nA=A
04-09-2012 04-09-2014 to 03-09-2022 0.62 410,500 - (73,500) - - 337,000
F-ZENAMA “E5-EENAEAZE
“E--FAAZR
Total 10,378,000 - (6,087,000) - (883,000) 3,408,000
At
The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the REBZE-_ZT—hFE+_A=1+—"BILEE ' &
dates on which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31 % Ej%& Eﬁﬁxifgﬁ {# B B3 2 BT Ay h0 4 2 5 Uk
December 2019 was HK$1.12 per Share (for the year ended 31 December T ASKI1.12B T (BE_ET—N\FE+=A
2018: HK$1.15 per Share). =+—HIEFE: FR1.1587T) °
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the
Share Option Scheme:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected employees (whether full time or part
time, including the Directors) of any member of the Group (the
"Eligible Persons”) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

The terms of the Share Option Scheme provided that in granting
options under the Share Option Scheme, the Board was entitled
to determine whether there is any minimum holding period, and
whether there is any performance target which must be achieved,
before an option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
exercised. The Board was also entitled to determine the option
price per Share payable on the exercise of an option (the “Exercise
Price”) according to the terms of the Share Option Scheme. Such
terms, together with the incentives that the option would bring
about, the Board believed, would serve the purpose of the Share
Option Scheme.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was effective during the period of
ten years commencing on 2 November 2007 (the date on which
the Share Option Scheme become unconditional) and the Share
Option Scheme was expired on 1 November 2017. On expiry of
the Share Option Scheme, no further option shall be granted
but in all other respects the provisions of the Share Options
Scheme shall remain in force. All options granted and accepted
prior to such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with their terms and terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

Basis of eligibility

The Board at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it might
think fit, granted options to any Eligible Person to subscribe at
the Exercise Price for such number of Shares as determined in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the Eligible Persons to the grant
of options were determined by the Board on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

Price for subscription of Shares
The Exercise Price was determined by the Board at the higher of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant of the options which must be a business day; and

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant,

provided that the Exercise Price shall in no event be less than the
nominal amount of one Share.

35

—E-NEFR

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE (H)

AT BTSRRI TR GAME

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

BREENEN

BRI ERESTSRAAKEIM
KERAIZEEREE (TwRE2BER
B BREFER) ([AEBALD®
HEERE - FRRFHAKEEL AR
HEEE B B IR -

B BRRE - EREB IR
R BRERN B FRRERR
BB R AR E 2 BN TTRE
Al RAREEFMKOHAHRR - L2
REINEMRBER - EFSNAREE
FEARBRB A S BRI T B AR B
NSk nBREER ([1TTEE]) -
ZEGRIN LB EELNER EF
SHRENERBREENAN -

BBRERTEIHIR
BRESAIN_TZT+F+—AZH
(BREEIZ ARG ZH) BT
FHEANAR MBREFIHER-F
—tF+—A— B2 REREE
ERE - BT EE -SRI B
HERE O AT &) 2 RSO P B EL A 7 | )
4 5B AR o D% FE AT B R R IR
ZHEBRESRERE 2GR RIBK
BB 2 RREBER RN TITRE -

BEBMWER
ERRT2ENEREEETERBE
A MR TS A RATRHER
HE - DLBRIR S R 1T (0 (B SRR IR IR I AR B
&8I 0 3R P 8 E K B ORR AR o

EZgREEMAEEBRALTERBLRE
WA ERER - AR R S B A%
RIMERAELNEMAEENERE

E o

B AP R R B B
IEEEAT 2B SR ESRET -
() BEARFTERRFAMBMDAE NS

BEER (AREXR)NED
E: R

(b)  EERPATHIMRATERMON BER
B B AT A E 2 % B e F T
=

HETT (2 1B £ 5 10 ] TSR — AR A 1) 6
H1E °



Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE (K)

(5) Acceptance of offers

The amount payable to the Company as acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option was HK$1.

(6) Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which might be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or
any other share option schemes of the Company) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date
(i.e. 2 November 2007) (the “Scheme Limit").

The Scheme Limit could be refreshed at any time subject to
Shareholders’ approval provided that such limit as refreshed
should not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the renewed limit. Share options previously granted
under the Share Option Scheme (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised) would not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the Scheme Limit as refreshed. On 23 May
2013, the refreshment of the Scheme Limit was approved by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting. As at the date of
this annual report, the number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 3,408,000 Shares which represents
approximately 0.46% of the total number of issued Shares.

(7) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to any Eligible
Person (including cancelled, exercised and outstanding options),
in any 12-month period should not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 23 September 2016, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme
in which the Group’s employees, directors, consultants or advisers will
be entitled to participate. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
no Shares were acquired from the market by the independent trustee
(Bank of Communications Trustee Limited), which is independent and not
connected with the Company. No Shares have been granted to eligible
persons under the Share Award Scheme up to the date of this report.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons; and (ii) to offer suitable
incentives to attract and retain targeted talents and personnel for the
continuance of operations and future development of the Group.
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The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the scheme
rules and the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme. Subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the Board, the Share Award
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten years commencing
on its adoption date (i.e. 23 September 2016).

The Board shall not make any further award of awarded Shares which
will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the Board under
the Share Award Scheme exceeding 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The maximum number of Shares which may
be awarded to a selected person under the Share Award Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 23 September 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries; nor for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into or
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group'’s five largest customers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total number of issued Shares was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to approximately HK$19,000.

AUDITOR

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards
of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles
of the Company emphasise accountability and transparency and are
adopted in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of the Shareholders and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has reviewed its
policies and practices on corporate governance, and policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Group has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the
"Corporate Governance Code” (the "CG Code”) during the year ended
31 December 2019, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except
the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code that the Board has
not appointed an individual to the post of chief executive officer up to
the date of this report and the role of the chief executive officer has been
performed collectively by all Executive Directors, including the Chairman
of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows
contributions from all Executive Directors with different expertise and is
beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s policies and strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises
the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman)
Mr. CHING Chi Keung

Mr. LIU Zigang

Mr. CHING Tsun Wah

Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung

Non-Executive Director
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace
Mr. NG Bo Kwong

Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson
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Board responsibilities and delegation

The Board collectively determines the overall strategies of the Company
and monitors performance and risks in pursuit of the strategic objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the Executive Directors or the senior management in charge of each
division. All Directors (including Non-Executive Director and Independent
Non-Executive Directors) have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Group.

The Board has delegated some of its function to the Board committees,
details of which are set out below. Matters specifically reserved for the
Board, including convening Shareholders’ meetings, implementing the
Shareholders’ resolutions, determining the Group’s business plans and
strategies, formulating the Group’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating proposals for dividend and bonus distributions and for
increase or reduction of share capital, determining the Group’s corporate
structure, formulating investment plans as well as exercising other
powers, functions and duties as conferred by the Articles of Association
of the Company.

The attendance of the Directors at Board meetings, committee meetings
and annual general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 were as follows:

EEgRERRE

%%@#ﬁ#i$ RIZEBRERERAAN
SREHEEZEERRERKR - ARAIAEE

ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%m$WZ%ﬁ%EA

B o BMAKEMEXIEREATEHEHASR

EE(PRIFPTEERBUIENTES) °

po g
=2

EFCeEHEDS
HEHATX
ERHABRRDH
BEMEBITE KR

TRETHTESRZES
HERBREFTSZRE &
iﬂ TERRREAR EELAK
CHREASENFEERE
kE2FKRA - %‘J;E/)E L~ o3 AL AR AN 3Kk EI R AR
AHHRE BEEREBENLERE HERE
FE ARGTERARAREBEIZAMAME T2
HiptES B RBE -

Eti —NAFTZA=t—BHLEFE RK
T%$Eauﬁz‘ CEERAMERAEFRE
WEELFEERNOT :

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERE

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Executive Investment Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ESZ® EHZEE R¥ZEE §FHZEE UMZEE REZEE RE
EE EE ] EE 23 ez EE ] BEAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEELE 414 - 111 17 4/4 171 11
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEaks 4/4 - - - 4/4 - 17
Mr. LIU Zigang 2FmEE 474 - - = 4/4 - 7
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRELE 4/4 - - - 414 - 11
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEBLE 4/4 - - - 44 n 11
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREELT 4/4 - - - - - 17
Independent Non-Executive BIEH{TES
Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan ~ FL$33t %4 44 22 - 1 - - 11
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace  BiRIEL A& 414 22 i 1”n - n 7
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERAEE 4/4 2 - 1 - - 17
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson BEBERE 4/4 22 i 17 - - 17
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Each Executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years while each Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of one year. All the aforesaid
service contracts or letters of appointment may be terminated by either
party by giving written notice in accordance with the terms of the
respective service contracts or letters of appointment. All the Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace has appropriate accounting
professional qualifications. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-Executive Director, namely Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung
Allan, MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson, an
annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all Independent
Non-Executive Directors meet the independence requirements as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. CHING Chi Fai (the Chairman of the Company and an Executive
Director) and Mr. CHING Chi Keung (Executive Director) are brothers.
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah (Executive Director) is the son of Mr. CHING Chi Fai
and a nephew of Mr. CHING Chi Keung.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four Board meetings were
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are being kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees:

. Audit Committee;

o Nomination Committee;

o Remuneration Committee;
. Executive Committee; and
o Investment Committee.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), who has appropriate accounting professional
qualifications and relevant expertise, and Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung
Allan, NG Bo Kwong and SUN Eric Yung Tson, all are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in fulfilling
its audit duties through the review and supervision of the Group's
financial reporting system, risk management system and internal control
procedures, details of responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
December 2019 are summarised below:

o reviewed the interim and annual results, the relevant statements
and reports of the Group, the significant financial reporting
judgements, in order to monitor the integrity and whether in
accordance with the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the applicable accounting standard,

o reviewed the external auditor’s audit plan and terms of
engagement;
o reviewed management letter and any materials queries raised

by the external auditor to the management in relation to the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s responses;

o reviewed the key audit matters and discussed with external
auditor and the management;

o reviewed the independency and objectivity of the external auditor,
the effectiveness of audit process and the non-audit service fee
payable to the external auditor;

o recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the external
auditor and the audit fee payable to the external auditor for
Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting;

. reviewed the effectiveness of financial control, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group involving financial,
operational and compliance control;
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o reviewed the internal audit report prepared by the internal auditor
and the management’s responses to the findings by the internal
audit function;

o considered and reviewed the proposals of internal audit plan; and

o reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, budget of the Group’s financial reporting and internal
audit functions.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees payable by the Company
to the external auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers are
HK$2,680,000 for audit services and HK$320,000 for non-audit services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Executive Director and Messrs. MA
Chun Fung Horace and SUN Eric Yung Tson, both are Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Nomination Committee held a meeting
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the identification and
recommendation to the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment
or re-appointment of Directors, succession planning of Directors and
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
details of responsibilities are set out in the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, which are published on the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are summarised below:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board;

o recommended to the Board regarding the re-election of Directors
for Shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting; and

o assessed the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
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Nomination policy

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee would assess the suitability of a proposed
candidate based on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

character and integrity;

professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that
are relevant to the Group's business and corporate strategy;

potential time commitment to discharge duties as a Director and/
or committee member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving the Board's diversity;

relevant requirements as stipulated under the Listing Rules,
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, other applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the Cayman Islands and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company; and

independence requirements for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

Nomination procedures

Appointment of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall upon receipt of the
biographical details of the proposed candidate(s), evaluate the
candidate(s) based on the selection criteria of the nomination
policy to determine his/her qualification as a Director and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration. The selected
individual(s) will be subject to re-election by Shareholders at
the next general meeting of the Company after his/her initial
appointment as Director(s) in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

For any person as nominated by a Shareholder for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, the qualification
of the candidate(s) shall be evaluated first by the Nomination
Committee and then by the Board based on the selection criteria
of the nomination policy. The Board shall make recommendation
to the Shareholders in respect of such proposed election as
Director(s) at the general meeting of the Company.

Re-election of Director(s)

The Nomination Committee shall review and determine whether
the retiring Director(s) continue to meet the selection criteria of
the nomination policy and make recommendation for the Board’s
consideration. The Board shall then make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director(s)
at the general meeting.
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Summary of the Board diversity policy

The Board diversity policy of the Company setting out the approach to
diversity on the Board. The Company continuously seeks to enhance
its effectiveness and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee and the Board will also take into account factors based
on the Group’s business model and specific needs from time to time.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. CHING Chi Fai, Executive
Director, and Messrs. HUNG Kam Hung Allan (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), MA Chun Fung Horace, NG Bo Kwong and
SUN Eric Yung Tson, all are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and structure,
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management, and the remuneration of Non-Executive Director and
Independent Non-Executive Directors, details of responsibilities are set
out in the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, which
are published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2019 are summarised below:

o considered and reviewed the service contract of each Executive
Director and the remuneration packages, including the
discretionary bonus, and the performance, time commitment
and responsibilities of each Executive Director and the senior
management, with reference to the prevailing market conditions,
and recommended for the Board’s approval on the adjustments
of remuneration of each Executive Director and the senior

management;
o considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy; and
o reviewed the respective letter of appointment and director’s fee

of each Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Director and recommended for the Board’s approval.
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The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31

BE-Z-—AF+-A=+—RILFEERE

December 2019 is as follows: HRBIDMERERABFTMHEI DT
Number of Individuals
A
2019
—E-NF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t 2= 1,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/8 7T £2,000,000/% 7T -
Executive Committee HITEES
The Executive Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman of #{7ZE8e€@REEBE4E (TEEEXE) -

the Executive Committee), CHING Chi Keung, LIU Zigang, CHING Tsun
Wah and KEUNG Kwok Hung, all are Executive Directors. The Executive
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Executive Committee has been delegated with the general powers
to deal with the daily operations and management of the Company,
including but not limited to, setting up new companies, opening bank
accounts, arranging banking facilities, affixing the Common Seal, issue of
Shares upon exercise of any subscription or conversion rights under any
share option schemes of the Company, warrants or convertible notes.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises Messrs. CHING Chi Fai (Chairman
of the Investment Committee) and KEUNG Kwok Hung, both are
Executive Directors and Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace, Independent
Non-Executive Director. The Investment Committee held a meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Investment Committee has been delegated by the Board to assess,
consider and approve/recommend any potential investments and/or
divestments of the Group, which are less than US$20 million, or 5%
of the total market capitalisation of the Company, in aggregate in
each financial year, whichever is lower, and approve each investment/
divestment reaching/exceeding HK$3 million but not exceeding 10% of
the aforesaid aggregate amount.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, continuous professional development
of the Directors and the senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Listing Rules and its updates, the compliance of
the Model Code by the Directors and employees and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors understand the
importance of continuous professional development and are committed
to participating any suitable training or reading relevant materials in
order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has received from each Director his/her training record of participation in
continuous professional development for the year ended 31 December
20109:

Attending seminar(s)
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on 5 October 2007. Having made specific enquiries to
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and of
results and cash flow for the financial period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards; made prudent and reasonable judgements
and estimates and have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s financial
statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group of the auditor of the Company is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 52 to 57 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. The Group’s internal control system includes
a well-defined management structure with limits of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication, and ensuring compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations. In addition, the Group has established
risk management procedures to identify and prioritise risks for the
business to be addressed by management. At least on an annual basis,
management identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement
of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to be significant.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board appointed a
professional consulting firm with the responsibility to conduct internal
audit function and assess risks of the Company and perform the
agreed-upon procedures in relation to the internal controls of the
business of the Group. The Audit Committee and the management will
follow up the suggestions from the aforesaid professional consulting firm
to further improve the risk management and internal control systems. The
Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management of
risks associated with its business activities.

The Board conducts a review of the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Group annually. The review of the systems
for the year ended 31 December 2019 included but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s review on
risk management and internal control systems; result of internal audit
work; the extent and frequency of communication with the Board in
relation to result of risks and internal control review; significant failures
or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status of
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board satisfies with the scope
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers that the systems are effective and adequate.

Procedures and internal controls for handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the
safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that information
contained in published documents are not false or misleading as to a
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with Shareholders is given high priority by the Group. A
Shareholder communication policy has been adopted for the purpose of
ensuring that the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely
access to the balanced and understandable information about the Group.
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Extensive information about the Group’s activities has been provided
in the annual reports and the interim reports which are sent to the
Shareholders and are available on the HKEXnews website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website. Shareholders may communicate
with the Directors and senior management in the general meetings of the
Company. External auditor is also invited to attend the AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies adopted by the
Company in relation to the preparation of the financial statements and
independence of the auditor in relation to the conduct of the audit.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders

The procedures of convening an extraordinary general meeting by the
Shareholders are as follows:

Pursuant to article 79 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings may be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings
may also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to
be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolution
at general meetings under the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting by following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Making enquires to the Board

Shareholders may make enquires to the Board in writing to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit D3, 8/F, TML
Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

On behalf of the Board

CHING Chi Fai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MING FAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ming Fai International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 156, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter BREITSEHE
Provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE SRR ERE
Refer to Notes 3(a)(iv), 4 and 13 to the consolidated financial B EI1HEFEHEHm#E 72 E A FER

statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2019, the provision for impairment of trade
receivables amounted to HK$26.5 million, of which HK$22.3 million
was attributable to customers located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

Customers located in the PRC generally have a slower settlement
pattern and may settle after the contractual credit period. Management
applied judgement in assessing the expected credit losses. Receivables
relating to customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually for provision
for impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated
by grouping the remaining receivables based on the shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for the likelihood of recovery,
taking into account the nature of the customer, its geographical
location and its ageing category, and applying expected credit loss
rates to the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The
expected credit loss rates are determined based on the historical credit
losses experienced of up to past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

We focused on this area due to the estimation and judgement involved
in determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables.
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Key Audit Matter

HEETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood and validated the credit control procedures performed
by management, including its procedures on periodic review on
aged trade receivables and assessment on the expected credit losses
allowance of trade receivables. We tested on a sample basis, the
accuracy of ageing profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices. We tested on sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank receipts. We obtained
management’s assessment on the expected credit losses allowance of
receivables. We corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern of up to past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers and market research regarding the
relevant forward-looking information such as macroeconomic factors
used in management’s assessment.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement
made by management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of trade receivables were supportable
by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
neEEERRER

As at 31 December R+—-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Goodwill S 10(a) 10,354 5,413
Land use rights + (s AR 6 - 67,716
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 7 400,631 351,093
Right-of-use assets B RAEEE 8(a) 108,692 -
Investment property wEYE 9 13,707 14,005
Intangible assets & E 10(b) 1,512 2,598
Deferred income tax assets RIEMEREE 11 3,850 3,610
Other non-current assets HuIEReEE 16 24,146 16,923
Investment in an associated company R—EBEATNEE 5,869 5,408
Investments in joint ventures RELETERNKE 363 307
Other financial assets 1RSSR AN BE 2
at amortised cost HismiEE 15 425 371
Total non-current assets IRBEERLTE 569,549 467,444
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 12 271,064 243,817
Other current assets HEime & E 16 39,801 35,030
Tax recoverable AT E B IR 194 4,100
Other financial assets LR AT B 2
at amortised cost HthemEE 15 12,363 11,863
Amounts due from joint ventures UL & & EFRIE 37 35 265
Amount due from an associated company  J& 4 — &1 B & N &) F0I8 14 5,046 3,125
Trade and bills receivables U E SR N B 13 591,749 666,408
Short-term bank deposits RHRITE R 17 295 521
Cash and cash equivalents HeRRE&EEEE 18 348,849 272,478
Total current assets REBEEHLTE 1,269,396 1,237,607
Total assets EEHAE 1,838,945 1,705,051
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners ¥ UNETE Z= DN
of the Company EhRER
Share capital B K 21 7.343 7.282
Reserves fEE 1,139,045 1,078,847
Final dividend proposed BERERE 33 22,028 36,428
1,168,416 1,122,557
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRE RS (37,510) (32,027)
Total equity R 1,130,906 1,090,530
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BERRIERER AT —ZE—NFFR
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
REEEBEBEXR(E)
As at 31 December R+—-A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FH T TFAT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEMESREE 11 7,361 7,460
Other non-current payables HuIEmeER A 24 6,495 2,879
Borrowings =Y 22 1,120 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 8(a) 2,929 -
__Total non-current liabilites ~~~ FmBAf#®® 0 1795 10339
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables ERE SRR 23 226,430 226,516
Accruals and other payables Bt EB R MEAEN A 24 332,166 299,246
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFr R A E 43,395 28,164
Borrowings BE 22 65,303 34,588
Lease liabilities HEBaE 8(a) 5,208 -
Loans from non-controlling interests ®H 3H SHEZE B 25 17,446 15,492
Dividends payable ERTIR B 186 176
__Total current liabilites ~~~~~~~ #B&f#A® 000000000 690,134 604,182
Total liabilities BEHAHE 708,039 614,521
Total equity and liabilities RERREE 1,838,945 1,705,051
The consolidated financial statements on page 58 to 156 were approved by  ZE58F 156B MG M BEHEAR S _TF =

AZ+HH %%i%QTtt/EIEEMT§$Ki€
RE

the Board of Directors on 25 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

CHING Chi Fai CHING Tsun Wah
BEE BkE
Director Director
S 3
g 6B BIMI 5t AR I F 4R 6 M TSk R B

The notes on pages 64 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated  5564%15
financial statements. B SR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEHEWNER

For the year ended 31 December

BHET-_A=1T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaE FTET T
Revenue WA 5 2,043,095 2,052,708
Cost of sales BHE AR 26 (1,546,839) (1,587,373)
Gross profit EF 496,256 465,335
Other income E A 27 11,114 6,056
Distribution costs 2 EHR A 26 (243,468) (231,181)
Administrative expenses TR 26 (127,813) (122,817)
Net (impairment losses)/reversal of SREE CREER),/
impairment losses on financial assets BB R O F 5 26 (9,701) 11,351
Operating profit REHRF 126,388 128,744
Finance income Y ON 29 1,515 877
Finance costs B 75 B X 29 (1,754) (1,206)
Share of profit of an associated company — F&1f — &5 & A 55 £l 897 1,948
Share of profit of a joint venture Eh—E& & %R A 56 95
Fair value gain on an investment property —IB#R &Y% 2 A F{EK 9 - 473
Profit before income tax KREt RSB AIRR 127,102 130,931
Income tax expenses FriSFif 2 31 (35,022) (34,850)
Profit for the year FEER 92,080 96,081
Other comprehensive loss Hib2HEEE
Items that may be subsequently HEAJREEF D IEE
reclassified to profit or loss Ba. 2 HE
Currency translation differences B E = (6,894) (12,358)
Realisation of exchange reserve upon BRENFT B A A B
dissolution of subsidiaries BIVNE H# (1,280) -
Total comprehensive income FE2ME
for the year W48 %8 83,906 83,723
Profit/(loss) attributable to: BAE%F (i) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F = IN 97,936 100,249
Non-controlling interests SRR HE A (5.856) (4,168)
92,080 96,081
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EaEEmkE S (88)
attributable to: BE:
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZ SN 89,469 87,426
Non-controlling interests JEIE =S (5,563) (3,703)
83,906 83,723
Earnings per share attributable to KATEEA
owners of the Company EiEERAR
(expressed in HK cents) (AL FIR)
Basic BN 32(a) 13.5 13.9
Diluted e 32(b) 13.4 13.8
The notes on pages 64 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated 25647 156 B B M st Atk Z 4R A B FE MR ) 252

financial statements.
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PAEERERBERLAR —ZE-HLFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGEShI[\l/EQUITY
GEEREER

For the year ended 31 December #HZE+Z—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAHEB AR
Shares held
for the share Non-

Share  award scheme Share Other controlling Total
capital (the "Scheme”) premium reserves Sub-total interests equity

FLAR I 2R

it (T3 8l])
Bx  mERG  ROEE  HuREE NGt RERRES L do
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TATL TAT THT THT T THL

Balance at R=ZB-N\E

1 January 2018 -B-B2&t (089 608538 475050 1,088,764 1,060,440
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EKHE/ (F#)
Profit(oss) for the year AEERT/ (BB) - - 100,249 100,249 96,081
Other comprehensive HEth2E (BR)/

(loss)/income Wg
Currency translation differences ~ EHMBEZE - - (12,823) (12,823) (12,358)
Total comprehensive 2ENE/ (B8

income/(loss) ko] - - 87,426 87,426 83,723
Exercise of share options TERRE

(Note 20(a)) (Hi#2002) - 1,010 - 1,027 1,027
Purchase of shares for the REEBAZ R

Scheme (Note 20(b)) (Hrzt20m)) (3.962) - - (3.962) (3,.962)
Final dividend relating to “EtEEY

2017 RERRR - - (36,206)  (36,206) (36,206)
Interim dividend relating to —E-\FE7

2018 mHE S - - (14,492) (14,492) (14,492)
Balance at RZZE-NE+=A

31 December 2018 =t-Rz&H (6,051) 609,548 511,778 1,122,557 1,090,530

The notes on pages 64 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated  Z564%F 1568 KM 3 AL S 454 B &= HE
financial statements. BEEL1D o
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

ReRE2E X (E)
For the year ended 31 December HE+_—A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADAHEE AR
Shares held Non-
Share for the Share Other controlling Total
capital Scheme  premium reserves  Sub-total interests equity
st &l

Bx mE<RH RHRE RtREE Mt FERES hRgn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TiEn TR TERL TER TR

Balance at RZE-RE

1 January 2019 -B-Az&4% 7,282 (6,051) 609,548 511,778 1,122,557 (32,027) 1,090,530
Comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EWi&E,/ (F8)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERH/ (BE) - - - 97,936 97,936 (5,856) 92,080
Other comprehensive Hth2E (FE) /

(loss)/income g
Curreny translation differences ~ E#HRE = - - - (7.187) (7.187) 293 (6,894)
Realisation of exchange reserve  BEEIHE A RIBER

upon dissolution of subsidiaries [ ¥ (& & - - - (1,280) (1,280) - (1,280)
Total comprehensive 2EKE/ (F8R)

income/(loss) faE - - - 89,469 89,469 (5,563) 83,906
Exercise of share options T AR E

(Note 20(3)) (H#20) 61 - 3713 - 3,774 - 3,774
Final dividend relating to ZE-\EEZRERE

2018 (Note 33) (Hr#33) - - - (36:442) (36,442 - (36,442)
Interim dividend relating to ZE-NERETHRE

2019 (Note 33) (233 - - - (10942  (10,942) - (10,942)

Non-controlling interest arising KB —RIMBAREL
on acquisition of a subsidiary LEERER

(Note 36) (Hii236) - - - - - 80 80
Balance at RZE-hE
31 December 2019 TZR=+-Br&H 7,343 (6,051) 613,261 553,863 1,168,416 (37,510) 1,130,906

The notes on pages 64 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated  Z64ZF 1568 KIMT:E At Z 454 B ISR & 12
financial statements. BEER1D ©
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AERERIZERAERART —ZZE—NFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n/T\ Iﬁ:%/)lb%’%%

For the year ended 31 December #HZE+Z—A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt &t FET AT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBREHNIRS 34(a) 252,663 109,718
Interests paid B E (1,754) (1,206)
Income tax paid BEHTEH (15,811) (35,024)
Net cash generated from operating RETERE
activities REeFH 235,098 73,488
Cash flows from investing activities RETHNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAWE  BERZE (136,082) (73,798)
Purchase of right-of-use asset BAGCAREEE (6,840) -
Purchase of land use rights A LT A - (33,029)
Purchase of intangible assets BAEFLEE (1,064) (637)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BELELHE
plant and equipment P8 38 34(b) 4,805 468
Payment for business combination, %i‘“/\@?ﬁ’]ﬁ%’( - kR
net of cash acquired BUENIR e 36 (956) (16,290)
Interests received 2 F 8 1,515 877
Short-term bank deposits with maturity ZIEAH B3R =& A e ke HA
over 3 months RITHER 226 (460)
Dividends received from an associated B —REEE QR
company %2 472 286
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFTARSERE (137,924) (122,583)
Cash flows from financing activities METHNRERE
Purchase of shares for the Scheme T EIBAZ RS - (3,962)
Proceeds from borrowings 1‘14)é IREE e 34(c) 46,968 50,000
Repayments of borrowings EBEgEs 34(c) (16,878) (37,582)
Principal elements of lease payments HENROEAEEHH 34(c) (5.,420) -
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders ENEARERERS (47,374) (50,624)
Proceeds from loans from non-controlling REFEREREZRN
interests FTiS 508 34(c) 500 1,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options 171 ﬁ%ﬂx% FriS s E 20(a) 3,774 1,027
Net cash used in financing activities RETETRARSEE (18,430) (40,141)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash HERBELZEEER
equivalents ®m, GRd) FE 78,744 (89,236)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYNHRSRES
beginning of the year E£EIEHR 272,478 367,759
Exchange loss on cash and RekBHAeFEEED
cash equivalents i H 518 (2,373) (6,045)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRONRERES
of the year ZEEE 18 348,849 272,478

The notes on pages 64 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ming Fai International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in manufacturing and trading of hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and equipment.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29
May 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands. Its
registered address is at the offices of M&C Corporate Services
Limited, P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 25 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by revaluation of
an investment property, which is carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2019:

= Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015 — 2017
Cycle;

- Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement;

- Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures;

- Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation;

- HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16"); and

= Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments.

The below explains the impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements and discloses
the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1
January 2019. The other standards did not have any material
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and did not require
any adjustment.
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

™
)

2

MEmAME (F)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (Continued)
(i)
2019

Accounting policies applied from 1 January

2

pi: 4=

A

(1)

Accounting for leases as lessee from 1 January

2019

From 1 January 2019, a lease is recognised as a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the

date on which

the leased asset is available for use by

the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed lease
payments and variable lease payment that are based on
an index or rate.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,

or the Group's i

ncremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability;

- prepayment;

= any initial

direct costs; and

- restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive

income. Short-term leases are leases

with a lease term of 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(1)

(ii)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Accounting for leases as lessor from 1 January
2019

The lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 did not have any
significant impact on the Group'’s accounting policies.

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from
1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives
for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under
the specific transitional provision in the standard.
The adjustments arising from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening consolidated
balance sheet on 1 January 2019.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

—  the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
lease with reasonably similar characteristics;

- relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019; and

- the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at
1 January 2019 as short-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date, the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 Leases (“"HKAS 17") and Hong
Kong (Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee)
4 "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease”.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as operating leases under the principles
of HKAS 17. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 5.77%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the
Group recognised the carrying amounts of the lease
assets and lease liabilities immediately before transition
as the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and
the lease liabilities at the date of initial application. The
measurement principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied
after that date. The remeasurements to the lease
liabilities were recognised as adjustments to the related
right-of-use assets immediately after the date of initial
application.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. Variable
lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs. During the year ended 31 December
2019, no variable lease payment was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(ir)

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group did not need to
make any adjustment to the accounting for investment
property held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.

Lease liabilities of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
5,224,000 was recognised on 1 January 2019 as a
result of adoption of HKFRS 16. It represents the net
present value of the operating lease commitment as
at 31 December 2018, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate on the date of initial
application, excluding short term lease payments of
HK$3,945,000.

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There were
no onerous lease contracts that would have required
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of
initial application.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i) Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the
following types of assets:

2

BEASTHERE @

(b) ANEEBRA 2 FET RAEERT

ZE Rl (@)
(i) FRANEE B & ER|
F169E (18)

ERRAEAEEER T
BeBERR:

1 January
2019
—E—NF
—A—8
HK$'000
FHET

Office premises E /NS ES
Factory buildings [ 12T
Warehouse B

89,771
11,617
2,506

Total right-of-use assets FHEEELS

103,894

The change in accounting policy resulted in the
recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
approximated to HK$103,894,000 and HK$5,224,000
in the opening consolidated balance sheet on 1 January
2019 respectively. Among the right-of-use assets
recognised on 1 January 2019, balances approximated
to HK$30,920,000, HK$67,716,000 and HK$34,000
were reclassified from property, plant and equipment,
land use rights and other current assets respectively.

The change in accounting policy did not have any
impact on the Group’s retained earnings as at 1 January
2019.

(c) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 2019 reporting
period and have not been early adopted by the Group. These
standards are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

AR B R IR B R 2 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting
(i) Subsidiaries

REMBHRERME (F)

2 EASTHHEHBE@

(d) &ftREZERA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer

to Note 2(e)).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
balance sheet respectively.

(i)  Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting (refer to Note 2(iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.

(i) Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has investments in joint

ventures.

Joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (refer to Note 2(iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the consolidated

balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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BB ERRMWE (K)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(iv) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group'’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of

the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy

described in Note 2(n).

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GBEUMBERRMWE ()

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

v)

Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/

2

—T-NEFR

BEASTHERME @

(d) & REZSFTER @

) HEREZRZE) )
fief 75 55 1) () 3R Sk 4 b 4 - HE

REHEXBATE

BRRELGE AKRKBE#ER

PARR HRZER

REBEDRE R FEEHET
B MEEEEFINER
MHERR © BLEE 18 A BR 51 1F B

ERE - RELEHETHE

ENREERMS

YL AREE  BEoh
1A EL A 2 T U A P B SR B
ERARNTASBERBEN
AEBEERLERREE
HBENTAAR - EA8E
EREFLAMAEHEMEEKA

permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.

(e) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Business combinations (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently re-measured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

74

2

BEASTHERME @

(e) ¥KE0tm)

EEBA G AEENA BRI E
E FfAENEERKAAR
(EBRAGISMERT) B U B
EHREAFEFLNPAE-
7K 5 [ DA B I e BB By 2 P (B 3K 3F
A 2 0 16 U R B R AT R F
BENBOREERRNEEE
BB e (] SEFRA M 2R o

W B ARRE A A EE AR SHH ©
i
o PTEEMN(E:

o FIKBERZEMIERE
BHERE R

o  EERAAKBERZRK
RRWERR 2 ATE

BEAKBERAIEANFEEAFE
ZERB - MARIIERE - %
FoROERMBBRBNAHE
AIFEERFE IZREER
BaPRASHEEWE -

RAKBRSEAERLEBA
B HEASRMABNSELE
EHHEALTE MATEN
BB R -

HWEBHEHIEEET RKE
77 o U B R U5 O B HE RO U
BHAREEEERERENE
RAVE BERENTEMELE
FE R s BB R B A

e



RERRZERAERAR —F—N

TR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Board that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

()  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(li)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

()

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal (Continued)
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result in the
Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Except for freehold land with indefinite useful life which is
not amortised and stated at historical cost less impairment,
all other property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial year in which they are incurred.

Until 31 December 2018, leasehold land classified as finance
lease commences amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
From 1 January 2019, the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, the leasehold land previously classified as finance lease is
accounted for as right-of-use asset under HKFRS 16 (refer to
Note 2(ab)).

Depreciation for buildings is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate cost over its estimated useful lives of 20
years.
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BEMBRERME (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation for other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements  Shorter of 10 years or lease period
Plant and machinery 10% - 33%

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture and fixtures 33%
Computer equipment 33%

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed and ready
for intended use.

Land use rights (included in right-of-use assets)

From 1 January 2019, the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, land use rights are accounted for as right-of-use assets
(refer to Note 2(b)).

Until 31 December 2018, land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Cost
represents up-front prepayments made for the rights to use
the land for periods varying from 20 to 50 years.

Amortisation of land use rights is expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

)

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both and is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined annually by external valuer. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices from less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuer with
changes in fair values recorded in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2(e). Goodwill
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Intangible assets

(1)  Trademarks, investment in club debentures and
software licences
Separately acquired trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences are shown at
historical cost. These assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of trademarks, investment in club
debentures and software licences over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

(i)  Brandname and operating licence
Brandname and operating licence acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. These assets have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the brand name and
operating licence of 2 to 10 years.

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each balance sheet date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company or joint ventures is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary,
associated company or joint venture in the period the dividend
is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwvill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o) Financial assets

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

The Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial asset
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial assets (Continued)

(ilf)  Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

(1

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (“HKFRS
9"”), which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets carried at amortised cost in
the consolidated balance sheet, the expected credit
loss is based on the 12-month expected credit loss. It is
the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results
from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime expected credit loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is assigned to individual items of inventory on the
basis of weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads based on
normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
and distribution costs necessary to make the sale.
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BB ERRMWE (K)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade, bills and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are unsecured, recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company and its
subsidiaries, associated company and joint ventures operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, an
associated company and joint ventures, except for deferred
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(x)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

(i)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within
twelve months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

(iii)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan
that is not a defined contribution plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant government
authorities for its employees in the PRC and contribute to
these plans based on certain percentage of the salaries
of the employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities.

The government authorities undertake to assume the
retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans.

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in a
mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for
its employees in Hong Kong. MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the rules
of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per
month. The assets of MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the group companies in an independently
administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to a termination when the entity has a
detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of
current employee without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after balance sheet date are discounted to their present
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Employee benefits (Continued)

v)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (shares or options) of the Company. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the shares or options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the shares
or options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

3 excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and;

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the
options are exercised.
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Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Employee benefits (Continued)

v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

When the options are cancelled during vesting periods,
the Group recognises immediately the amount that
otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include
the incremental fair value granted in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received as
consideration for the equity instruments granted. The
incremental fair value granted is the difference between
the fair value of the modified equity instrument and that
of the original equity instrument, both estimated as at
the date of the modification. If the modification occurs
during the vesting period, the incremental fair value
granted is included in the measurement of the amount
recognised for services received over the period from
the modification date until the date when the modified
equity instruments vest, in addition to the amount
based on the grant date fair value of the original equity
instruments, which is recognised over the remainder of
the original vesting period. If the modification occurs
after vesting date, the incremental fair value granted is
recognised immediately.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

(y) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Provisions (Continued)

(2)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimates of the expenditures required
to settle the present obligation of the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value
is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminated sales within the Group.

()  Sales of goods
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has accepted the products,
the collection of the related consideration is probable
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals and
other payables as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BB ERRMWE (K)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

BEASTHERME @

(2) WMAZHER @

(z) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i) Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(aa) Government grant

Grant from the government is recognised at its fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grant relating to costs is deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period necessary to match it with the costs that it is
intended to compensate.

Government grant relating to property, plant and equipment
and service concession arrangement is included in accruals
and other payables and is credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

(ab) Leases

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMBHRERME (&)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAETHEHME@
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Leases (Continued) (ab) FHE @)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received, nature of
the lease assets and the terms and conditions of the leases,
such as the lease periods and geographical locations.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

93

H—-—F 711?5 ﬁfﬂﬂﬂﬁf
B2 @i IR (4
fﬂfﬁﬁ?iﬁ’]é?&ﬁ%%ﬂi%
HEETF=E - HEBEREU
THEMNFHFRE !

o BEMR( BEEENERE
50+ R RIS & 12 R

o Wi E S A R & A e
BN PR B S
EE e FIRHE

s AKEREXNKEERER
HIEM RS

e BEEBEMNTEE (WX
SEAEBMETEXER
) Rk

o B ILHEZ MRS FH (U
T U R A &= [E 17 8 3%
BEIEHE) o

SHHAENTRHAEARERE
TEEBEERETETRANE
BT -

HEMNFKRBEERE SR X
BEER - i RBEREE L M K (K&K H
MEE — R REERETE) @ BIE
FAE A S8 2 18 3R & - B {E B
7¥<?HAE¢BA*EM?%/§%¢REPL‘MB
EEF BR MR IEERSEE
HERBEERENEEMBA
fEARE S MAXEFEK o

RETEEMERNER  KEEK
PR 5l AR A BT 4 ER B9 3T H 2E =
TREFERER  WETHEN
REBKBME=ZFTREUNRBE
MR ES HEEENHEER
HE MR RS fImAE S
KB E -

$Elﬁ£?ﬂa%(iﬂ+u R0
AEEEN RN R EFHH
B - Eﬁﬁfﬁtﬂ’iiﬁlﬁﬁT\ i#
HAAMERET - EHREHK
A R 5 H B AT 2 & S 5RAE
AER BeHREAREEY
HEREETEN TG LA -



Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(ab) Leases (Continued)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
o prepayment;

. any initial direct costs; and

. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet
based on their nature. The group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHMEm
POLICIES (Continued)
(ab) Leases (Continued) (ab) FHE @)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentive received from the lessor) are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(ac) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market
by the Scheme (Note 20(b)), the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for the Scheme
and deducted from total equity.

(ad) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
GEMBRERME (&)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are mainly
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$ and United
States dollars (“US$”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$ and USS$,
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is subject
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the Group.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes that
the exchange rate risk for translations between HK$ and
US$ do not have a material impact to the Group. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

This currency exposure is managed primarily through
sourcing raw materials denominated in the same
currency. The Group has not considered it appropriate
to substantially hedge against currency risks through
forward exchange contracts upon consideration of the
currency risk involved and the cost of obtaining such
cover.

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,267,000,
higher or lower (for the year ended 31 December
2018: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$2,296,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of RMB denominated net payables.

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the US$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$6,747,000,
lower or higher (for the year ended 31 December
2018: post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$1,389,000, higher or lower),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange differences on
translation of US$ denominated net receivables (2018:
US$ denominated net payables).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iff)

(iv)

Interest rate risk

The Group has cash balances placed with reputable
banks and financial institutions, which generate interest
income for the Group.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the
Group's borrowings have been disclosed in Note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking
into consideration of refinancing, renewal of existing
positions, and alternative financing. Based on these
scenarios, the Group calculates the impact on profit of
a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the
same interest rate shift is used. The scenarios are run
only for assets and liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

Based on the simulations performed, the impact
on post-tax profit of a 100 basis-point shift would
be a maximum increase/decrease of approximately
HK$93,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(for the year ended 31 December 2018 approximately
HK$440,000) mainly as a result of change in interest
rates on short-term bank deposits and borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk
and commaodity price risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits, amount due from an
associated company, amounts due from joint ventures,
as well as credit exposures to trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (F)

™
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)  Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

2)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing
basis.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history and the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers based
on their past repayment patterns, latest business
developments and other factors. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and bills
receivables falls within the recorded allowances.

The table below shows the credit limit and
balance of the five major debtors as at 31
December 2019 and at 31 December 2018.

3 H¥RARERE@m

Bt 7% [ B (Rl & ()
(v) 1EEREE &)

(a)

As at 31 December

(1)

B &

EERRIZASE
HEEE - EEECDHIE
BE HEZEUER

B R ek

AEE S HlE B R
REMBETEERL
BRIFZEP  MAK
BRBETEFEETMNE
FER - RIEBER
REMAZMHER
F#E1TE REAFHE -
R B B R W E
PEANZBEIEZ
BELBRYEBLS
RSB A -

TREHAEKEBAD
AR—ZZTE—-—hLF+=
A=+—BR=F—N
E+=-A=+—B2
CERRBERES -

R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F

Counterparty Credit limit Utilised Credit limit Utilised

HER EEPREE 2 A EERTE 2 A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET T T T T

A 40,000 39,226 35,000 34,835

B 37,000 36,844 34,000 32,367

C 36,000 32,035 36,000 34,670

D 38,000 28,844 38,000 35,522

E 26,000 22,950 26,000 24,253

F 34,000 5,376 30,000 27,466

Impairment of financial assets ) THEERE

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from NEBEESTERZE

an associated company and amounts due from
joint ventures for sales of goods of the Group
are subject to the expected credit loss model.
While cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits and other financial assets at
amortised cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

2)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
trade and bills receivables, amount due from an
associated company and amounts due from joint
ventures. The Group measures the expected credit
losses on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual
basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or with significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2019, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of individually assessed receivables was
approximately HK$25,128,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$22,274,000).

The following table presents the gross carrying
amount and the loss allowance in respect of

3

iy

BB RENE(A)

B 7% L B B BB ()

(a)

B i B b H & (@)
(v) 15EREER &)
2) =HEEERE (&)

FEWE 5K FEE
JEK— & 2 Rl E
REWE EEFEHE

AEBERAETBHYBER
HERESRA EFAH
SEER BT
HEWEZERREE
xR E QR
FIA KRB A & DK
B RAREFEH
BHIEREE - A5 H
12 Bl Jo &= B8 2 & —
PRt ERRAEERE -

# ] ) & E 5 £ 78 A
15 BE 18

B3 B A0 R B DI £
8k U [B] fE Uk 3K TE B 2R
GEEARBZEFE
HE B8 B FE WSGR B - Th sk
(B B A B FE A o
RZE—ALEFE+=A
=+—H ZE@ERIFF
HEKFEBEEBZER
B 5 45 4 925,128,000
B (ZZ— N\ &F
+=A=+—8:4
22,274,0005 7)) °

TREFIR=F—NF
tZA=t—-HR=

the individually assessed receivables as at 31 E-N\F+ZHA=+—
December 2019 and 31 December 2018: B & Bl 5T & FE U R TE 2
AREAE K EERE

2019 2018

—B-hEFE —TN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Gross carrying amount RHEBE 25,128 22,274
Loss allowance EEEE (25,128) (22,274)
Net carrying amount REEME - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BB ERRMWE (K)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective
basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for the likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on the historical credit losses experienced
of up to past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively assessed
receivables was approximately HK$1,402,000
based on expected credit loss rates up to 17.63%
applied on different groupings.

Impairment and reversal of impairment losses on
receivables are presented as “net (impairment
losses)/reversal of impairment losses on
financial assets” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When a receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and other financial assets at amortised
cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2019 (31 December 2018: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v)

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
sufficient cash.

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated HK$348,849,000 (31
December 2018: approximately HK$272,478,000).

The following tables analyse the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

Specifically, as at 31 December 2019, for borrowings
which contained repayment on demand clauses which
could be exercised at the banks’ sole discretion, the
balances had been reclassified as current liabilities.
The analysis shows the cash outflow based on earliest
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that
is if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights
to call the loans with immediate effect (31 December
2018: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BMERREE@m
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MR BxRAEZE @
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) V) HEEZ/ERE &)

Between  Between

On  Less than 1and 2and Over
Demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1228 2B5%

REXRE 1%/ 28 2B SENE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TR TR TREr TRz TER

At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE&

+=A=+-AH

Borrowings EE

— principal portion ) 64,778 525 420 700 - 66,423
Lease liabilities HERE - 5,354 2,522 846 - 8,722
Trade payables RES] = - 226430 - - - 226,430
Accruals and B ERR

other payables Hth BN FUE - 187,678 - - - 187,678
Loans from non-controlling 38 & JEE Rk

interests ZER 17,446 - - - - 17,446
Dividends payable B S - 186 - - - 186

At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E

+=A=+-H

Borrowings B8

~ principal portion -KeH5n 34,588 - - - - 34,588
Trade payables ERESHRT - 226516 - - - 226516
Accruals and EHEAR

other payables HiEMZE - 166,771 - - - 166,771
Loans from non-controlling 3R & JEFARE

interests ZE# 15,492 - - - - 15,492
Dividends payable [EFTRR S - 176 - - - 176
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

RERMBHRRME (F)

3 H¥RARERE@m

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIEKREZE@
(v)  Liquidity risk (Continued) V) REEZEE &)
The table below analyses the borrowings of the TREBRBERRZEH
Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the EI]HH SRR N BN
remaining period at the end of the reporting period EoBEMEDHARMNE
to the contractual maturity date without taking into B gl ET RIEERE
consideration the effect of repayment on demand zﬂ{l AT E  mHERRK
clauses, while interest payments are computed using A LR ZRTE
contractual rates.
Between  Between
Within 1and 2 and Over
1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1225 2855
15 R 2 2@ SEE Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THET THET
As at 31 December 2019 R-B-N%F
+=ZA=t+-H
Borrowings: -
~ principal portion -Ke#Hn 17,511 15,819 31,181 1,912 66,423
~ interest portion —FEE 2,049 1,480 1,467 34 5,030
19,560 17,299 32,648 1,946 71,453
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\F
+=ZA=t+-8H
Borrowings: BE:
~ principal portion ~KeHH 7,985 7,706 14,808 4,089 34,588
— interest portion —F 82D 1,036 754 967 107 2,864
9,021 8,460 15,775 4,196 37,452
(b) Capital risk management (b) E<EEREMR

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BB ERRMWE (K)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Capital risk management (Continued)

(9]

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total equity.
Management considers a gearing ratio of not more than 30%
as reasonable.

3

Annual Report 2019

B 7% L B B BB ()
(b) ELEEE @

AEEMNAEERBLRERH
BAR -t RRREERALRE
B E - EEEARGEMNEE
BELERETRN30% -

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+—H

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Borrowings ==Y 66,423 34,588

Total equity BRES 1,130,906 1,090,530

Gearing ratio BEAMGELE 5.9% 3.2%
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over the KEEEMEHBASEETEIE
requirement for working capital management are transferred FENReR&% DEBEAAS

to interest bearing current accounts and time deposits, with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group maintains cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$348,849,000 (31 December
2018: approximately HK$272,478,000) that are expected to
be readily available to meet the cash outflows of its financial
liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at
amortised cost, amount due from an associated company,
amounts due from joint ventures, trade payables, dividends
payable, accruals and other payables and loans from
non-controlling interests, approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.

See Note 9 for disclosures of investment property that is
measured at fair value at 31 December 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate (Note 3(a)(iv)). The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
Board. The Board reviews the Group’s internal reports in order
to assess performance and allocate resources. The Board has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of
hospitality supplies products and trading of operating supplies and
equipment. From a geographical perspective, the Board assesses
the performance based on the Group’s revenue by geographical
location in which the customer is located. Altogether, the Group
has two reportable segments: (a) Hospitality Supplies Business and
(b) Operating Supplies and Equipment (“OS&E") Business.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of profit before income tax, share of profit of
an associated company, share of profit of a joint venture and fair
value gain on an investment property.

Information provided to the Board is measured in a manner
consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHRRME (F)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 S¥ER@m
Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial DAERRHE IR — R RTET o 37
terms. Depreciation and amortisation charges are apportioned with ERBHEERNZXEXRBINBEENE
reference to respective segment revenue from external customers. SHEWATUASE - REBHNEEKRE
Assets and liabilities of the Group are allocated by reference to the BIN2BRAEBKEEBNEETS
principal markets in which the Group operates. EITDHR ©
Geographical ith &
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
BERERER EERMRRBEY Hit
Other
Asia
Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Others
America  Europe  The PRC Kong Australia  (Notei) (Noteii) Sub-total ThePRC (Noteiii) Sub-total Total
Hify
TALE Hit Hiy
% B HE B BN ) (i) et HE (A gt b
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
T#r FAx TEx TEx FEx TEx TFEx TEx TEx TEz TEx TEz  F#Ex
Year ended HE-Z-NF
31 December +zA=t-H
2019 LEE
Segment revenue HERA 393011 232250 616189 303393 39597 285302 3937 1873679 111,392 69,05 180,446 6,395 2,060,520
Inter-seqment revenue 2 4BRIUA - - ) (3230 - - - (5201)  (9201)  (2746) (12,037) (©97) (17,425)
Revenue from external  RESNBEEH
customers WA 393011 232250 614132 300150 39597 285302 3937 10868388 102,101 66308 168400 6,298 2,043,005
Earnings before interest,  KzHF|S - K&
taxes, depreciation, & BER
amortisation and —HRENEL
fair value gain on an AT ERER
investment property HEF 3512 21519 44653 25765 5809 21,747 91 170,05 5009 3671 870 4425 183251
Depreciation g (11390)  (6731) (17,79)  (8700)  (1,148)  (8269)  (114) (54,151) (83) (58)  (131)  (391) (54,679)
Amortisation B (429) (254) (671) (328) @3) (312) @ (@) - - - (143)  (2,184)
Finance income FBUA - - 378 1,061 - 69 4 1512 - - - 3 1515
Finance costs BHERA - - (B77)  (1,320) (5) (38) - (1,740 - - - (14 (1,754)
Segment profitbefore K&t FTS KA
income tax SEER 31603 20534 26184 16478 4703 13,97 87 113636 5016 3617 8633 3880 126,149
Share of profit of an Bl
associated company BENERF 87
Share of profitof ajoint ~ E(E—HAL L%
venture pgil 56
Income tax expenses FERAY (35,022)
Profit for the year REFGF 92,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRME (F)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 Z7EERm
Geographical (Continued) = (&)
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
BREEERER LERRRREEY 0]
Other Inter-
Hong locations Hong Other segment
The PRC Kong  Australia ~ Cambodia ~ (Wotei)  Subtotal  ThePRC Kong locations  Sub-total elimination Total
RBE HEH
il & B RER (K gt il B HHHE it i @it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn TEn Tn T#n Tz TR TEn Tn T#n Tz TEn TEn Tn
Asat RZZ-1E
31 December 2019 tZA=t-A
Total assets EELE 933,112 653,064 2318 233915 70,888 1,893,357 79,952 39,076 391 119,419 31210 (205,041) 1,838,945
Include: B
Investment in an associated W —FIEE
company NAMEE - 5,869 - - - 5,869 - - - - - - 5,869
Investments in joint REELEH
ventures RE - 363 - - - 363 - - - - - - 363
Additions to non-current FRBAE
assets (other then deferred — FE (BT
income tax assets and FERAEREN
other financial assets at ARSI 2 E A
amortised cost) SREERI) B304 12,136 2 100289 2805 150776 156 - - 156 - - 15093
Total liabllities AEEE (410,358) (209,956 (179) (312000  (50,671)  (702,364)  (15305)  (34,668) - (49,973)  (160,743) 205041  (708,039)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) EER @)
Geographical (Continued) & ()
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
BERERES BERMRRBEK Hoh
Other
Asia
Pacific
North Hong regions  Others Others
America  Europe  The PRC Kong Australia  (Notej) ~ (Notei) ~Sub-total  ThePRC  (Noteii) Sub-total Total
Hoh
TRBE b Hify
pI73 B HE & B wE) () i RE (W) gt &3
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr TExr TExr TExr TEr TEr  TExr TEr TEr TEr TEn
Year ended HEZZ-N\%
31 December +=A=1+-AH
2018 IHER
Segment revenue ARRA 411,280 240488 633,828 280,898 48614 277,368 3947 189,423 104,547 49,763 154,310 5908 2,056,641
Inter-segment revenue ~ 2ERKA - - (3499 - - - - (3499 - - - (439)  (3933)
Revenue from external KA NBZFH
customers WA 411,280 240488 630,334 280,898 48614 277,368 3947 1,892,929 104,547 49,763 154,310 5469 2,052,708
Earnings before interest,  RFHF|S K&
taxes, depreciation, & BEK
amortisation and —ERENELZ
fair value gain on an ATEREHA
investment property nEF 39,860 19,824 50,391 22,139 1998 23984 727 158,923 5447 3,350 8,797 5561 173,281
Depreciation ik (8859  (5180) (13577) (6,052 (1,047) (5975 (85)  (40,775) (24) (11) (35 (122) (40,932
Amortisation 3] (747) @37 (1,143) (509) (88) (504) 7) (3435 - - - (170)  (3,605)
Finance income BBRA - - 388 472 - 13 1 874 - - - 3 877
Finance costs L N = = (13)  (1,154) = (11) - (1179) = = = (28)  (1,208)
Segment profitbefore AR F/EHEA
income tax PERT 30,254 14,207 36,046 14,89 863 17,507 636 114,409 5423 3,339 8,762 5244 128 415
Share of profit of an [EfE—F
associated company [ NG bl 1948
Share of profit of a EE—HaEtE
joint venture pasil 9%
Fair value gain on an —ERENEL
investment property ATERE
(Note 9) (Hi#t9) 473
Income tax expenses FERAX (34,850)
Profit for the year RER A 96,081
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERMBHRRME (F)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o¥ER®m
Geographical (Continued) & ()
Hospitality Supplies Business OS&E Business Others
BEEERES BERRRRXEES Hify
Other Inter-
Hong locations Hong Other segment
The PRC Kong  Australia Cambodia ~ (Noteiv)  Sub-total  The PRC Kong locations  Sub-total elimination Total
HiphE AR
HE i 2N REE W NG HE B AfotE gt i | o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Thr Thr Tax Tz TEr TExr Thr TEx  TEx  TEn  TEr TEn
Asat RZE-\F
31 December 2018 +=A=t-A
Total assets AEEE 1,009.945 615,478 1,224 116,295 48342 1,791,284 50,122 13,817 378 64317 36,636 (187,186) 1,705,051
Include: 25
Investment in an il 5l
associated company RAMEE - 5408 = = - 5408 - - - - - - 5408
Investments in joint NRELE
ventures HRE - 307 - - - 307 - - - - = = 307
Additions to non-current  FEREIEE
assets (other than RE (BT
deferred income FEHEAE
tax assets and other & HR
financial assets at 5|z Eth
amortised cost) SREE
Bah) 68,145 2,539 8 104,349 384 175,425 46 - - 46 28 - 175499
Total liabilities BERE (421,194)  (141,258) (18)  (12,639) (43,721) (618,830) (12,547)  (2,327) - (14,874) (168,003) 187,186 (614,521)
Notes: Kiaz -

Other Asia Pacific regions mainly include the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC, Japan, United Arab Emirates, Thailand, the Philippines,
Malaysia, Singapore, Dubai and India.

ii Others mainly include South Africa, Morocco and Algeria.

iii Others mainly include the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and the United
States of America.

iv Other locations mainly include Singapore, India and Japan.

Additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions to
goodwill, right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and other non-current assets including additions
due to business combination (2018: additions to non-current assets
comprise additions to goodwill, land use rights, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and other non-current assets including
additions due to business combination).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 Ti{FRARE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January, as previously presented R—A—H 1:BFE2% 67,716 39,888

Impact of adoption of HKFRS 16 RN BE BB mEEA
(Note 2(b)) FE16R I E (MiF20)) (67,716) -
At 1 January, as restated R—H—R K575 - 39,888
Additions NE - 33,029
Amortisation (Note 26) BiE (W it26) - (1,970)
Exchange differences M R - (3,231)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H - 67,716

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s interests in land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments.

From 1 January 2019, the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, the land use rights, as prepayments of lease payments, are
accounted for as right-of-use assets under HKFRS 16. The carrying
amounts of these prepayments were reclassified to right-of-use
assets on 1 January 2019 (Note 2(b)).

Amortisation of the Group’s land use rights has been charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

RIBE-N\F+-A=+—HB K*&E
R IE R s € EME RN -

B-E-hE—A—B (FBEMBRS
EAFISFENEREABEH) & T
ERE(ERBEERNR REFTEM
BHmEENFIRIFREREEEA
R MFRNFRNEEER_F—NF
—A—HEH-R=ERAEEE (MFE
2(b)) °

AEELHEREZRFEREARE
WK - FEEIT ¢

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH T AT

Cost of sales SH S A AR - 236
Distribution costs SaN =) DN - 752
Administrative expenses THHAX - 982
- 1,970

As at 31 December 2018, certain land use rights of aggregate net
carrying value of approximately HK$1,673,000 were pledged as
securities for banking facility of the Group (Note 22).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME -BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Motor and  Computer  Plantand  Construction
land  Buidings  improvements  vehides fixtures  equipment  machinery in progress Total

o BF RENRRE AE GRRKE  ERDE ERRME  ERIRE it
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKFOOO  HKS000  HKS0D  HKFOOO  HKS000  HKY'000
TR TRR TR TR AT TRT  TAR TR AL

At 1 January RZB-NE

2018 -A-A
Cost AR 35208 193,849 99,385 25,271 19,173 20342 210,118 - 603352
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HE

and impairment R (3203  (81,171) (72133)  (17,146)  (16,529) (18399)  (125,279) - (333860)
Net book amount REFE 32005 112,678 21252 8,131 2,644 1,943 84,839 - 269492
Year ended HE-E-NE

31 December 2018 TZA=t-8

LEE

Opening netbook amount B EEE 0005 112678 2725 8131 2,644 193 84839 - 26949
Additions RE 7,345 4477 8,016 2,37 860 512 26,051 21,276 76,774
Additions due to business ~ EEFHAH

combination MAE 10422 34,890 - 30 745 - 11,540 - 57,919
Disposals (Note 34(b) HE (Wits4p) - - - (14) 2 () (981) - (1,000)
Depreciation (Note 26) &) (1,285 (10,869) (6,809  (3,164) (890) (©11) (17,004 - (%093
Exchange differences EREE 29 (4,509 (1,286) (132) (139) 719 (4969) 25 (11,160)
Closing netbook amount ~ EXBEEFE 48458 136,671 21173 7,380 3218 1,462 99,480 21251 351,093
At 31 December RZB-NE

2018 tZB=t-A
Cost AR 52946 224,441 101,945 25,044 19,687 1985 230,530 21251 701,699
Accumulated depreciation 23 &

and impairment ki@ (4.488)  (87,770) (74772)  (17,664)  (16,469) (18393)  (131,050) - (350,606)
Net book amount REFE 48458 136,671 21173 7,380 3218 1,462 99,480 21251 351,093
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= A
?-"vT\l:l

7

MEHREANE (&

)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7 YE -HBERSKE®
Furniture
Leasehold Motor and Computer Plantand Construction
land Buildings improvements  vehicles  fixtures equipment machinery in progress Total
Li B RENRKE fE BARKE EHRHE BEREE HRIR @it
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEn Tén Tz TéEx TEz TEn TEn THn
At 1 January RZB-hE
2019 -A-H
Cost, as previously KA
presented a2 5,006 224,441 101945 25044 19687 19855 230,530 21251 701,69
Impact of adoption of RipEBHEH
HKFRS 16 HEBIZ 1650
(Note 2(b) FEWit2)  (35408) - - - - - - - (35408)
Cost, as restated DY 17538 224,441 101,945 25044 19,687 19855 230,530 271,251 666,291
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HHTE
and impairment, as RiAfE
previously presented mBEE5 (4,488)  (87,770) (74772)  (17,664)  (16,469)  (18,393) (131,050) - (350,606)
Impact of adoption of RMEEHHR
HKFRS 16 SERIE 16300
(Note 2(b) YEMWH) 4488 - - - - - - - 4488
Accumulated depreciation  Z5HTE
and impairment, Rt
as restated mEs| - (87,770 (74772)  (17,664)  (16,469)  (18,393) (131,050) - (346,118)
Net book amount, REEE:
as restated LEy 17,538 136,671 21173 7380 3,218 1,462 99,480 27251 320,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMBRRME (F)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 7 ¥ - BERRE @

Furniture
Leasehold Motor and  Computer  Plantand  Construction
land  Buildings  improvements vehicles fixtures  equipment  machinery in progress Total
14 By  HENEEE RE  GiR%E EERE HEREZ FEIE it
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#7 T#7 T#7 T#n T#n 7 T#7 TEn T#L
Year ended HECE-NE
31 December t2A=t-8
2019 58
Opening net book amount, ENEERE
as restated HEL] 17538 136,671 IAVE] 1380 3218 1462 99,480 21251 0173
Additions RE - 26,309 1,663 1,263 620 668 4,047 57512 136,082
Additions due to business RERAMN
combinaton (ote 36) RE K% - - 0 35 16 - - - M
Transfer gf - 230 - - - - - 231 -
Disposels (Note 34b) WEHiup) - - o (18) 6 - (4 - )
Depreciton (Note 26 & Wie) - (10m) 6413) (2983 o) (126 (2209 - (91
Bxchange differences EizE (95) (201) (511) (48) ) (19) (1,990) (344) (5,065)
(Closing net hook amount EREATE 17443 21 27,928 5919 2805 850 112,376 62,098 400,631
At 31 December 2019 H=E-1E
t2R=t-8
Cost e 17443 269,178 107,546 26,320 19,689 19923 253,171 62,098 115,368
Accumulated depreciation and ZiE
impaiment L - (97,966) (79,618) (20,401) (16,884) (19,073)  (140,795) - (374,731)
Net ook amount REFE 17443 mamn 1928 5919 2,805 850 112,376 62,098 400,631
Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment has REBERNYE  BELREHITED R
been charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive SETEWERIOEG  FBWT :
income as follows:
2019 2018
—EB-NF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of sales 8 A 32,012 26,005
Distribution costs PalicIDN 3,474 4,033
Administrative expenses THRS 10,429 10,894
45,915 40,932
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REMBRRME (FE)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate net carrying value of approximately HK$27,678,000
(31 December 2018: HK$62,111,000) were pledged as securities
for banking facilities of the Group (Note 22).

8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
related to leases:

M- BERRE@®

R-ZE—NE+=-—A=+—H #Kk
5 (E 427,678,000 7T (— T — )\ F
+*H_+fE| © 62,111,000/ 7T) 2
BETYE BERRZETUAER A
REBRITEE 2 R (HF5E22)

EHEEERBERE

(@) REEEERERBEAN
T8

HeEERBRB T TIEEE
BRANTHE

31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF
+=A=+—8” —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises IES/NELI/ S 93,744 89,771
Factory buildings BEETF 13,897 11,617
Warehouse BE 1,051 2,506
108,692 103,894

Lease liabilities HEEE

Current Bl HA 5,208 3,277
Non-current JEBNER 2,929 1,947
8,137 5,224

During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions
to the right-of-use assets amounted to approximately
HK$15,117,000, including additions of approximately
HK$435,000 due to business combination were recognised by
the Group in the consolidated financial statements.

As at 1 January 2019, leasehold land and land use
rights amounted to approximately HK$30,920,000 and
approximately HK$67,716,000 were reclassified from
property, plant and equipment and land use rights to
right-of-use assets respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

RERMBHRRME (F)

8 FHAEEBEEREESEGEW

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ NGEEEEBREAN
balance sheet (Continued) S8 )
As at 31 December 2019, certain right-of-use assets with an —NLE+=-_A=+—8H"
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$31,233,000 & T4 ARM(E4931,233,00078 LAY
were pledged as securities for banking facilities of the Group CTRAEEECERERLRNEEIR
(Note 22). TRE M EAR M (P FE22) -
Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) AEZE2EHKEZREZN
statement of comprehensive income o]
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows SETHNERBARTIERAE
the following amounts relating to leases: HEE S5
2019
ZE-hEF
HK$’000
FTET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEHEEENRE
Office premises WAEYE 4,141
Factory buildings BEEF 3,196
Warehouse BE 1,427
8,764
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 29) HEBBNERXZ (Hi29) 496
Other lease expenses (Note 26) HMBEER (Aitze) 9,779

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash
outflows for leases of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$15,681,000.

The Group’s leasing activities and how they are
accounted for

The Group leases various land, office premises, factory
buildings, warehouses and others. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 3 years, which do not
contain any extension options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.
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RERMBHRRME (F)
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9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 9 KREW=
2019 2018
—E—-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
At 1 January wW—H—H 14,005 14,289
Revaluation gain EXEl e - 473
Exchange differences fE W =58 (298) (757)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—8H 13,707 14,005
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated IATRZRIBERGE 2E KRS RER
statement of comprehensive income:
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Rental income (Note 27) He WA (Ki#27) 313 310
Direct operating expenses arising from an REEEMERBAZ—IE
investment property that generates rental KEWMEZERLERY
income (Note 26) (H1a£26) 49 50
(@) Independent valuation of the Group's investment property (@) AEEKREYED HEEEDTH

was performed by the valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, to
determine the fair value of the investment property as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018. The following table
analyses the investment property carried at fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

EEETEERAEBRAAET
BYHE UWEBEETREVER=
E-NF+ZA=+—HBE=ZFT
—N\E+-_A=+—HZAFE-
TRIBEIZ A TFEINEZREY

EMREDHT -
DNFEER

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2019 using
R-FB-AF+=A=+—H
DNFEFE (BT JIEET)

Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
& BA HEEEE HtEEN EENARA
FERMSEHNERE TEEBAYRE SERBARE
(B—#) (B=4) (B=#)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET THET
Recurring fair value KEMHEANFE
measurements: 2
Investment property "EYE - 13,707 -
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RERMBHRRME (F)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (cContinued) 9 BREYZEm

(a)

(Continued) (a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(&)

ANFEER @R

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2018 using
RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
NFEE (RUATEIEED)

Quoted price Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
=t B HR&EEE HihEBEH BEEHAA
ERTSHNRE AIBRBAZE BERASE
(B—#4&) (B=#) (B=%)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
Recurring fair value LEMNTE
measurements: &
Investment property KEYE - 14,005 -

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were
no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have
been generally derived using the sales comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot.
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BB ERRMWE (K)

9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Continued)

(b)

Details of the investment property:

The investment property of the Group are leased to the
tenant under operating lease with fixed monthly rental
payable and the Group closely monitors the risk associated
with its right retains in the underlying asset.

Address of investment property

REMFE it

Existing use

BATAR

Annual Report 2019

9 KREVXEum

(b)

BREMERZFE

AEEZEENFERSABERE
NG EHERBEPEL
AEEZIERBREEMRE
BN ARERR

Tenure

A

Room 101, Chuntian Garden, No. 6,

Lane 999, Loushanguan Road,

Changning District, Shanghai City, the PRC
hE BT RERSEILIIKI99E

65k ERER101E

At 31 December 2019, the future aggregate minimum
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating lease of the
investment property not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements, which are receivable by the Group as
follows:

31 December 2019: Rental
(31 December 2018: Rental)

—Z-NAFFTZA=+-H HE
(ZZ-N\%+=A
=+—B:#%8)

The property is held under
long term lease

NEDRERAEERSS

R-B-hhF+-A=+—8 "
REBRBAIAITHREMEE
BHE 2 BRARKEEERA
R (RANEE M BHRRER) W
™

2019 2018

—E-hF —EF-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —F R 179 314
Later than one year but no later ER—F

than 5 years EBENERESF - 183

179 497

10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(a) Goodwill

On 31 May 2019, the Group acquired 51% of the equity
interest of Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. (“Wayoutokushin”)
in Japan (Note 36). As a result of this acquisition, goodwill
of approximately HK$4,974,000 was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at the date of acquisition.
The goodwill represents the synergy attributable to the
Group’s business, including the workforce and synergies
expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition of the new
subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

-
ma

B mAME (F)

10 BEREFEE@

(a) Goodwill (continued) (a) BHE @)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
At 1 January R—H—H 5,413 -
Addition due to business AEKAHMAE
combination (Note 36) (K1:t36) 4,974 5,371
Exchange differences M5 =5 (33) 42
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 10,354 5,413
Goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of CGUs, EMESREEBEAENCRESEE
which represent the lowest level within the Group at which B IAEE RN A EIEMm
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management SERBE Y KEKE (FARK
purposes, and not larger than an operating segment. EOER) o
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s goodwill of approximately R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8H"
HK$5,430,000 (2018: approximately HK$5,413,000) and 7N & E 495,430,000 0 (=&
approximately HK$4,924,000 are attributable to the — \%F : 495,413,000 7T) & 4
operations in Cambodia and Japan respectively. 4,924,000/ T 2 & T 9 Rl 2K B
R R BN 2 EFEIE ©
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on HWEELS uz—m@ﬁgamg
a value in use calculation. The calculation uses pre-tax cash FEREATE L EZETE - HtE
flow projection based on financial budgets approved by FEFEAGRAIR S REANERE
management covering a five-year period. Thereafter, the cash BESRREAFHNYHREZEM
flows are extrapolated using the terminal growth rate not e AFHEMNRESRERT
exceeding the long-term average growth rate of the countries BHERESEABEMNEEMERRK
in which the CGU operates. EHIEHMERNRRIEE RHE
E_ o
Impairment test of goodwill arising from the business i ZE N H K E A AT E
combinations in Cambodia and Japan A B AR A 6 (B A
The key assumptions are as follows: FERROT :
Operation Operation
in Cambodia in Japan
RRERE2EE RBAEZEE
2019 2018 2019
—E-hEF —E-N\EF —E-hEF
Pre-tax discount rate FRATYTIR XK 20.2% 20.2% 22.4%
Compound annual growth rate BEFHER 20.2% 15.6% 17.2%
Terminal growth rate g R R 3.0% 3.0% 1.0%

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use
exceeded carrying value as at 31 December 2019. A decrease
in compound annual growth rate by 3.3% (2018: 3.2%)
and 4.4% would remove the remaining headroom for the
operations in Cambodia and Japan respectively.

=19

RIEFEREETESH AR K
¢BBER-_ZE—NLF+=A
=t BZEmE - BES FIE
RRABIHA33% (ZF—\4F :
32%)&44%'%“%IJ/EMEA%$
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 10 REREFEEE @)

(b) Intangible assets (b) BEEE

Investment
in club Software  Operating
Trademarks  debentures  Brandname licences licence Total
BE BREFRE REAE  RAETE fmzpR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THL THL THL THL
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H
Cost A 1,608 968 16,731 8,628 - 27,935
Accumulated amortisation KitEH
and impairment RifE (1,141) (968) (16,731) (7,209) - (26,049)
Net book amount REFE 467 - - 1419 - 1,886
Year ended BZ-3-N\E
31 December 2018 TZA=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEERE 467 - - 1419 - 1,886
Additions AE 43 - - 594 - 637
Addition due to business REBAH
combination mAE - - - - 1,728 1728
Amortisation (Note 26) i (Wie) (185) - - (875) (575) (1,635)
Exchange differences EXER - - - (14) 4) (18)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 325 - - 1124 1,149 2,598
At 31 December RZB-N\%
2018 TZR=1-H
Cost AR 1,651 968 - 9,222 1,728 13,569
Accumulated amortisation 258
and impairment R (1,326) (968) - (8,099) (579) (10,971)
Net book amount REFE 325 - - 1,124 1,149 2,598
Year ended BZ-3-NE
31 December 2019 TZB=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREE 325 - - 1124 1,149 2,598
Additions NE 84 - - 980 - 1,064
Addition due to business REBAHMAE
combination (Note 36) (h1##36) 37 - - - - 37
Amortisation (Note 26) B3 26) (176) - - (1,146) (862) (2,184)
Exchange differences ERER - - - (1) @ )
Closing net hook amount ERREFE 270 - - 957 285 1512
At 31 December RZE-nE
2019 tZA=1-H
Cost A 1,772 968 - 10,203 1,728 14,671
Accumulated amortisation ZirEE
and impairment KoRfE (1,502) (968) - (9,246) (1,443) (13,159)
Net book amount REFE 270 - - 957 285 1,512
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

10 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 10 REREBFEEE @)

(b) Intangible assets (Continued) (b) EFEEE @
Amortisation of the Group’s intangible assets have been AEBELEENBHEENGS
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive FEMRKRNE - FEFOT -

income as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THE T FAT
Cost of sales HEK A 863 575
Distribution costs D EHA AN 533 215
Administrative expenses 1T X 788 845
2,184 1,635
11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 11 EEFRBH
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a & B A Al oR Hl BT REF G BN AR IR &
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current EEAMFIAREEE - MBREMSHR
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the Wk R — BB AR - Bl S UREFT 2 HY
same fiscal authority. The offsetting amounts are as follows: BEEEBEGAEKE HESBWAT :
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred income tax assets REFSHEE 3,850 3,610
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMSHAE (7,361) (7,460)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EEFSHABEREE (3,511) (3,850)
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as EIEFSFHEES C S#EFEEM T ¢
follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hF —ZE-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THExT FAT
At 1 January nR—H—H (3.850) 3,319
Additions due to business combination AEKEHMAE - (4,871)
Recognised in the consolidated statement of 4R 4& 2 HE IR AFER
comprehensive income (Note 37) (K71at31) 345 (2,175)
Exchange differences fEHZE%E (6) (123)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (3,511) (3,850)
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REMBRRME (FE)

11 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 11 EZEFEH @
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during NEBRFE—MHIF e AEREENGHE
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of BRI R  ERNELEREHREE
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: RAaESESHmT
Deferred income tax liabilities EiEFFEFEas
Revaluation Additions
Accelerated ofan dueto Capitalisation
tax  investment business ~ of right-of-use
depreciation property  combination assets Total
-ERE Rx#  RAREE
MEHREHE WEER  AHWAE =N[4 @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TRL TAL TR TEL TRL

At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-f-H (953) (1,839) - - (2,792)
Additions due to business combination REKABRMAR - - 4871 - (4.871)
Recognised in the consolidated statement  IMFA 2
of comprehensive income WERNER 97 - - - 97
Exchange differences ERES - 9% 10 - 106
At 31 December 2018 R=2-N§+ZA=1-B (856) (1.743) (4,861) - (7.460)
Impact of adoption of R ASRBREEN
HKFRS 16 EA[5d 7 - - - (1.193) (1,193)
Recognised in the consolidated statement 434 2
of comprehensive income WHRRED 90 - 1,416 (290) 1,216
Exchange differences ExER - 37 18 2 76
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-B=1-H (766) (1,706) (3427) (1,462) (7,361)
Deferred income tax assets BERBHERE
Decelerated Capitalisation
tax of lease
depreciation liabilities Total
WEBETE HEABEEERL et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHTT FHT FHT
At 1 January R=ZB-NEF
2018 —HA—H 6,111 - 6,111
Recognised in the consolidated REEEE
statement of comprehensive W&
income NHERR (2,272) - (2,272)
Exchange differences PE 3 =& (229) - (229)
At 31 December RZZE-NEF
2018 +=A=+—H 3,610 - 3,610
Impact of adoption of RN E B ERE
HKFRS 16 HRF16K 2B - 1,193 1,193
Recognised in the consolidated REEEH
statement of comprehensive W&
income NHERR (1.221) 350 (871)
Exchange differences [EH =% (52) (30) (82)
At 31 December R-ZZE-h&F
2019 +=BA=+—H 2,337 1,513 3,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$13,022,000
as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$12,228,000) have not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the remittance of earnings of PRC
subsidiaries. The related unremitted earnings of total approximately
HK$260,438,000 at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$244,552,000), and the Group does not intend to
remit these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiary to the
Company in the foreseeable future.

11

RERMBHRRME (F)

IE 3L FT 18 8 ()

R—ZE—NE+=-A=+—H &A=&
& 3 2R Tt A B R BB A &) A BE &R A
EAENRERECHEHAEEN
13,022,000 L (ZE—NF+ = A
=+—H :#12,228,000/67T) - R=F
—NF+-A=+—H HBEXREHAE
M & £ 49260,438,00008 T (ZF — )\ &
+=A=+—H : #9244,552,000/8 L)
FMAEEEZ ] B AR KRR E BN
BRAMEREHABFIEREARAF -

INVENTORIES 12 78
2019 2018
—E-NF VAN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Raw materials [E MR 91,455 100,184
Work in progress RS 12,816 11,017
Finished goods SURY @ 184,889 150,167
289,160 261,368
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories W RETFERE (18,096) (17,551)
Inventories, net FEF8E 271,064 243,817

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,082,056,000 (for the year ended
31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,135,305,000).

Direct written off of and provision made for obsolete inventories
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$1,132,000 (2018: approximately HK$2,760,000) and
approximately HK$6,572,000 (2018: approximately HK$7,484,000)
respectively. These were recognised as an expense and included
in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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REMBRRME (FE)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 13 EWREBEGZRIAKRER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —EF-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 613,655 684,716
Bills receivables e =& 4,624 4,687
618,279 689,403
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : Ji Ui 5% T8 )i (& B4 4 (26,530) (22,995)
Trade and bills receivables, net EWEZERRERFE 591,749 666,408
The credit period granted by the Group ranges from 15 days to 120 AEEMRTHOEESRNFI158E1208 °
days.
Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables by invoice date is as EWESERRZEERREZHHANKRER
follows: ST :
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
1-30 days 1£230H 324,893 399,708
31-60 days 31260H 121,237 121,691
61-90 days 61290H 69,635 76,875
91-180 days 912180H 49,675 67,633
Over 180 days 180H A £ 52,839 23,496
618,279 689,403
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Denominated in: BATE®SME :
- RMB —ARE 317,909 349,271
- Us$ -7 225,780 257,422
- HK$ — BT 43,394 58,799
— Other currencies —HEmEE 31,196 23,911
618,279 689,403
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13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The fair value of trade and bills receivables, net are as follows:

RERMBHRRME (F)

13 EREZRIFAREE @

UEZERREBFENRFENT

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade and bills receivables, net JEUNE SRR R EHRF R 591,749 666,408

As at 31 December 2019, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$26,530,000 (31 December 2018: approximately
HK$22,995,000) are impaired and have been provided for. See
Note 3(a)(iv) for information about how impairment losses are
calculated. Net impairment losses on trade and bills receivables are
presented as “net (impairment losses)/reversal of impairment losses
on financial assets” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously impaired
and provided for are credited in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised are written off against the provision
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. As
at 31 December 2019, the individually impaired trade receivables
mainly represent receivables of approximately HK$22,701,000
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$22,086,000) from PRC
customers which have remained long overdue and management
considered the recoverability is remote.

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

WN_Z—NF+_FA=+—8 EKZ
5 8RR 2 4926,530,0008 7T (=
—N\FE+=-A=+—8 : 422,995,000
BL) B HBERERELEE BHEE
A E 12 Y & R s 2 B M sE3(a)v) © B
BOERREBZREBEFERGS
cHEEREI A eREE (REER)
SOBEBIEREIEE] o BEEKE LS
BELVREBEENRESEALEGEEA
etk - WIB A E AR B ZEINR & - B
B 78 52 R (8 7 55 1Y FE W R 18 70 B 4 R il
H- RZE-—NF+=—HA=+—H" @
AIHRBERNEKRE ZEREZRERK
R P8 H B AR I 422,701,000
BT (ZCZE—N\NE+_A=+—"H: 4
22,086,000/ 70) B B E R & A U Bl
B

R 5 R R B RE R R B B
W

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET AT
At 1 January »w—A—H 22,995 38,735
Net provision/(reversal) of provision of trade ~ FREWE HER
and bills receivables recognised during the REZHEE,/ (BE)
year R 9,701 (11,351)
Write-off of provision for impairment of WHEKE SRR L EED
trade and bills receivables BERE (5,652) (2,931)
Exchange differences fE X E% (514) (1,458)
At 31 December “+=—A=+—A~ 26,530 22,995
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13

14

15

MEmAME (F)

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have
been included in net (impairment losses)/reversal of impairment
losses on financial assets in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering
additional cash.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is
the fair values of trade and bills receivables disclosed above.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATED
COMPANY

The amount represents trade receivables from an associated
company. The carrying value of the amount approximates its
fair value. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and mainly
denominated in HK$. The credit period granted is 90 days. The
ageing analysis of amount by invoice date is as follows:

13

14

FEWESERIREE @

BB (E B R R BB AR IR R B IR B AT
AGFRZEEBERAZERMEE OREE
18) /REBEEEFEE G ABREBERF
MRE-RRBEAS TG RERIIRS
5 5 -

REEENRREERRD EXAKE
MEWE SRR RZENRFE -

FE U — B & A R FRIE

ZAR AR R —EE 2 QR E SRR o
ZRBZEREEREQFERS &KX
HEEW ENSREEETAE-
RYHNEEHROB - RBEEBHZ K
DM

2019 2018

—B-NEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHBT

1-30 days 172300 2,123 3,103
31-60 days 31E60H 1,691 22
61-90 days 617290H 1,232 -
5,046 3,125

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST

15

BB ER AT IR Hitb & B
BE

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Current; TE -

Deposits Be 3,543 2,774
Other receivables H el IA 8,820 9,089
12,363 11,863

Non-current: FERE -
Long-term deposits REES 425 371
12,788 12,234

The carrying value of the amount approximates its fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

RERMBHRRME (F)

15 RBERAI Rz EMESE

COST (Continued) BE@m
2019 2018
—EBE-NEF —F—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Denominated in: RUTEBIIE

- RMB —AR#& 10,514 9,765
- HK$ —AT 727 363
— Other currencies —HibhEH 1,084 2,106
12,325 12,234

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of other financial assets at
amortised cost include receivables from joint ventures amounted
to approximately HK$463,000 arising from non-trading activities.
These balance were unsecured in nature, interest-free and

RIBE-NF+-A=+—8 K#&H
RASR 2 B SR EEGHRERESL
BFEEZ R cRKRAELEFIALY
463,000/ 7T ° It FHE SR B - & A

denominated in RMB. BERAARESE -
16 OTHER ASSETS 16 Hh&EE
2019 2018
—E2-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T T T
Current: VL2
Prepayments TET 5RIE 16,137 27,480
Others Hih 23,664 7,550
39,801 35,030
Non-current; JERE -
Prepayments (Note) TR (A 52) 24,146 16,923
63,947 51,953
Note: HiaF -

17

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of non-current prepayments included
prepayment to iBridge Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“iBridge Technology”), a
joint venture of the Group amounted to approximately HK$78,000, arising from
purchases of information technology services. Such balances are unsecured in
nature, interest-free and denominated in RMB.

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2019, short-term bank deposits of
approximately HK$295,000 (2018: approximately HK$521,000)
represented bank deposits of the Group with original maturity over
three months which are denominated in Indian Rupee.
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REMBRRME (FE)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RERBEEEEIEH
2019 2018
—E-1F AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Cash at banks and on hand RITHEHEIRE 308,169 272,478
Short term bank deposits (original maturities 52 BRSR 1717 5K

of less than three months) (RIEBABLR=MEA) 40,680 -
348,849 272,478

Denominated in: BATE®ESIE
- US$ —E7T 100,159 89,007
- RMB — AR 93,196 71,447
- HK$ — BT 92,537 73,765
- EURO — BT 27,138 20,635
— Other currencies —HhEK 35,819 17,624
348,849 272,478

The Group’s cash and bank balances and short-term bank
deposits with banks in the PRC and India as at 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$105,489,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$101,656,000) and approximately HK$1,447,000
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$1,113,000) respectively,
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange
control.

19 RESERVES
Other reserves

19

Statutory  Share-based
Merger reserve  compensation

reserve fund

reserve

EE ARG

R-Z—-AE+-_A=+—H8 A&H
GRAPBREEMNETZEE RIETE
M EHIRTTF 5 » 5#9105,489,000
BLT(ZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H: 4
101,656,000/ 7o) & #11,447,0007% 7T
(ZZE—NE+=-A=+—H:#1,113,000
BIL)  BEERZINEES IR -

(G R
Htb & 5

Other Exchange Retained
reserves reserves eamings Total

Hhbie  EXER  REEA a3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TAT TAT TAT TAT TATL
Balance at RZB-N§
1 January 2018 -B-HMER 61,510 33,728 22,264 5233 43,005 309,310 475,050
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year AERR - - - - - 100,249 100,249
Other comprehensive loss ~ Efh2E i
Currency translation differences &M EZE - - - - (12,823) - (12,823)
Total comprehensive 2 (F8) i
(loss)/income ag - - - - (12,823) 100,249 87,426
Final dividend relating to “E-tEEY
2017 RERE - - - - - (36,206) (36,206)
Interim dividend relatingto~~ —E—\EE 2
2018 PERE - - - - - (14492) (14,492)
Exercise of share options T RE - - (820) - - 820 -
Balance at RZZ-NE+=F
31 December 2018 St-BhER 61,510 33,728 21,444 5233 30,182 359,681 511,778
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REMBRRME (F)

19 RESERVES (Continued) 19 f#E& m

Other reserves (Continued) H it f#%E m)
Statutory  Share-based
Merger reserve  compensation Other Exchange Retained
reserve fund reserve reserves reserves earnings Total
i URAXA
Atk fEe  HHERE HtbifE B REEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR ThR THT ThT THT THT TET
Balance at RZB-N%E
1 January 2019 -B-Rthgs 61,510 33,728 21,444 5233 30,182 359,681 511,778
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - 97,936 97,936
Other comprehensive loss H2EER
Currency translation differences EHnEEE - - - - (7,187) - (7,187)
Realisation of exchange reserve I
upon dissolution of subsidiaries AARER
EREE - - - - (1,280) - (1,280)
Total comprehensive 2E(F8B) /i
(loss)/income ax - - - - (8,467) 97,936 89,469
Final dividend relating to “E-N\EE2
2018 (Note 33) RIS (Wit33) - - - - - (36,442) (36,442)
Interim dividend relating to “E-NEEY
2019 (Note 33) hERE (Hit33) - - - - - (10.942) (10,992)
Exercise of share options TEBRE - - (3,192) - - 3,192 -
Lapse of share options BIRERH - - (423) - - m -
Balance at RZE-AE+ZR
31 December 2019 ct-RiER 61,510 3728 17,829 5233 1,715 413,848 553,863
Representing: R&:
Reserves i 531,835
Final dividend proposed BaAERE
(Note 33) (Wit33) 2,028
Balance at RZE-AE+2R
31 December 2019 t-BHLHR 553,863
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iy

19

20

BB ERME (F)

RESERVES (Continued)

Other reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose
Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
cost of investments in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from
the application of merger accounting in consolidating the financial
information of the affected entities.

Statutory reserve fund

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies
are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net profit to the
fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses
or to increase registered capital of the companies, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’
registered capital.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve is used to recognise the
grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not
exercised (Note 20).

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(a) Share options

As at 31 December 2019, 3,408,000 share options (31
December 2018: 10,378,000 share options) were outstanding
and all of them are exercisable (31 December 2018: same).
Among the outstanding share options, 2,846,000 (31
December 2018: 2,946,000) and 562,000 (31 December
2018: 709,000) share options will lapse on 9 September 2021
and 4 September 2022, respectively. As at 31 December
2018, there were also 6,723,000 share options outstanding
and to be lapsed on 23 June 2019. These 6,723,000 share
options were either exercised or lapsed as at 31 December
2019.
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REMBRRME (F)

20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION

(Continued)

20 AR T E @

(a) BEBRRHE (@)

(a) Share options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 6,087,000 share
options (for the year ended 31 December 2018: 1,656,000
share options) were exercised at proceeds of approximately
HK$3,774,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$1,027,000). Share options exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2019 were issued at a weighted
average exercise price of HK$0.62 (for the year ended 31
December 2018: HK$0.62) per share. The related weighted
average closing price at the time of exercise for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$1.10 (for the year ended
31 December 2018: HK$1.15) per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 883,000 share
options were lapsed on 23 June 2019 (for the year ended 31
December 2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share options
were forfeited (for the year ended 31 December 2018:
100,000 share options).

As all the share options were fully vested, no share-based

HE-_Z—hLF+=-A=+—H
IEEE - 6,087,00010 L # (B &=
—E-—NE+ZA=+—HI#E
€ :1,656,00010 i I #&E) ‘LT 15
RIEA3,774,0008 T (BHE-Z
—NE+-A=+—"HItEE: ¥
1,027,000 70) BE171E - REZE =
E-NE+-_A=+—BHIEEMR
TEZEREEZNEESTEES
fRo.62B T (BE=_ZE—N\F+=
A=+—HLFE:0628m) 3%
T -BE_TE—NF+=-A=+—
B IEFE @ 17 F 5 45 78 o0 4 F 15
WHEAERIIBLT (BHE-Z
—NE+_A=+—HIEFE:1.15
BIT) °

BE_ZT—h&F+-_A=+—H81t
F£E 833,000 EREER =
—NESNA-T=B%M(FHE=
;?)—)\¢+:HE+—E|¢¢J§=
7Y o

HE-_ZTZ-NAE+-_A=+—H1
FE BMEBREFRLIK (HE=
E—NE+=A=+—HILEE:
100,0001D BB RS ) -

HRAABRESELZHEE &%

BE_ZT—h&F+_A=+—H81t
FEWEERARD IR (F
E_E-NF+-_A=+—HBIEF
8| o

payment expense was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and mARITEE AR 2 B R EHAERATT

their related exercise prices are as follows: FEEZEFHUT -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F

Average Number of Average  Number of

exercise share exercise share

price in HK$ options  price in HK$ options

per share  (thousands) per share  (thousands)

BRUET BB

TEZTEE  BREZE FHEITH BREZE

TEE (F4) 1128 (1)

At 1 January R—A—8H 0.62 10,378 062 12,134
Granted s dun - - - -
Forfeited 2 - - 0.62 (100)
Exercised 718 0.62 (6,087) 0.62 (1,656)
Lapsed s 0.62 (883) - -
Cancelled FRic _ _ _ _
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 0.62 3,408 0.62 10,378
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20 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT COMPENSATION 20 UBRB XA @
(Continued)
(b) Shares award (b) B4R
On 23 September 2016, the Company has adopted the RZZE—REFAAZT=8 " F2
Scheme, to (i) recognise the contributions by employees, AIEERMETE - OB EASEE®
directors, consultants or advisers of or to the Group (the BE BEZ HHAZEBR(EE
“Eligible Persons”); and (ii) offer suitable incentives to attract WAL FTER M E R - (i)
and retain targeted talents and personnel for the continuance BHERE) ARSI RBEERAT K
of operations and future development of the Group. Subject ABUBRAEERFELSCERERAK
to the rules as set under the Scheme, the Board may at its Ko ZRARETE FJ’T%X%E U8 -
absolute discretion to elect any Eligible Persons to participate AEERNBEREARNEERALS
in the Scheme (the “Selected Persons”) and to award the HEE ([BEAL]) RALERE
Company's shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to these Selected BALTEREAQFRMD ([RER
Persons, subject to vesting conditions, if any. These Awarded 7)) MERBETEBIRE(NE) °
Shares will be transferred to the Selected Persons upon their It & B A% (9 #E R ﬁ*ﬁ*ﬁ F‘ﬁ Eﬁ?%ﬂm
fulfillment of all relevant vesting conditions. HREBRTRERZEE
In connection with the implementation of the Scheme, the HATHEMS  AEED ESGF
Group has signed a trust deed with an independent third E=7 (RETRERGOER L
party to act as the trustee (the “Trustee”) to hold certain R/KEBA AERREAEE R
shares on behalf of the Group and the Selected Persons BEATRHAEESEROOZTEA
before these Awarded Shares are granted and/or vested. ([ZFEAD I EE 25T - A5 H
The Group may from time to time instruct the Trustee to A IR R X FE AMEHE R AT 4578
purchase the Company’s shares from the market on the Stock BARRAIMKRGD - WAKEE A L+ Fa=
Exchange and to hold them in trust for the benefit of the RIKEGAMEFER B ARG -
Selected Persons.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no shares were HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—8H
purchased by the Group for the Scheme. During the year IEFE - NEEBEMRGFEBER
ended 31 December 2018, 3,550,000 shares were purchased HeBEZE-N\F+ZA=+—
on the Stock Exchange at a consideration of approximately HIESE + 3,550,000/ B X
HK$3,962,000 by the Trustee on behalf of the Group. No FEARKRARE B IR (E 3,962,000
shares were granted to Eligible Persons under the Scheme BITREBRAEE #E_ZT— N
during the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the year ended F+-_A=+—HIEFE HER
31 December 2018: same). MRFEFE S ERALTRD (8
E-E-NFF+ZA=+—HIF
E :A8E) e
21 SHARE CAPITAL 21 RA
Number of
shares HK$'000
&R FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SROOIBINEER
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R=—Z-N\E¥—-A—-A8"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 —E2-NFE+=A=t+—-8"
“E-hF-A-HK
—E-N¥+=-A=t—-H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRAE
At 1 January 2018 R=Z2-NF—-A—H 726,519,697 7,265
Exercise of share options TR AR 1,656,000 17
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\F+ZA=1—8H 728,175,697 7,282
Exercise of share options TR R 6,087,000 61
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-AF+-A=1—H 734,262,697 7,343
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REMBRRME (F)

22 BORROWINGS 22 fBE
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Non-current: s -
Secured bank borrowings without WER B REEERZ
repayable on demand clause BRBRTES 405 -
Secured other borrowing without WL EREBGER 2
repayable on demand clause FERFHEMEE 715 -
1,120 -
Current: ey
Secured bank borrowings with BBEREREZKRZ
repayable on demand clauses EEARARTEE 64,779 34,588
Secured bank borrowings without WEZEREBGRZ
repayable on demand clause EEARARTEE 292 -
Secured other borrowing without WEZEREBGRZ
repayable on demand clause EEAHMEE 232 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 65303 34588
66,423 34,588
At 31 December 2019, the borrowings are denominated in the RZBE-AF+TZA=+—H 8®AUT
following currencies: BE¥IIEZEENT
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 26,644 34,588
uss$ =7 38,135 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(HE]D 1,644 -
66,423 34,588
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values HRTRZZEBIAEXN  BEZEREHR
as the impact of discounting is not significant. BEARFERE
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 B8 @)

At 31 December 2019, the repayment terms of the borrowings
without taking into account the effect of repayment on demand
clauses are as follow:

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H x&H
MEEEY BT RIZEREEERIOF
T BEMERYNT

2019 2018

—B-hF —E-N\EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within 1 year P1ER 17,511 7,985
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 7 [ 15,819 7,706
Between 2 and 5 years 2Z5F 7 fE 31,181 14,808
Over 5 years HBiEs5F 1,912 4,089
66,423 34,588

The weighted average effective interest rate per annum of the
Group's borrowings at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
are set out as follows:

RNR—ZEBE—-hE+_A=+—BER=_Z
—NE+-_A=+—8 AEEEEN
MEFEEHERFEFEHZOT

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$ BT 3.00% 2.95%

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018.

Except for bank and other borrowings of HK$1,644,000 as at 31
December 2019, which was secured by personal guarantee of a
non-controlling interest of the Group, borrowings were secured
by certain land use rights, property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings
are as follow:

BE-_T-NF+-A=+—-BR=%
~NE+=AZ+-BILFE KEEH
EETHEERME 2 MBEHE -

BRZZE—AE+-A=+—BwiRT
o H i & & #91,644,0005% 7T UA 72~ &= E 3F
ERER 2 BAAEREZRIN EEH
NETFIERE ME- BEKR
KAE FAREE EE VR -

HEECCEREEZREENT

2019 2018

—E2-NF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FHET

Land use rights + Hh {5 A A - 1,673

Property, plant and equipment WM WENMEE 27,678 62,111

Right-of-use assets FREEE 31,233 -
Total carrying amount of assets SRR EE

pledged as security TR @R 58,911 63,784
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22 BORROWINGS (continued) 22 EE W)
At the balance sheet date, the following is the undrawn banking REER NEB 2 M ARRIARITH
facilities of the Group: BEWT
2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Floating rate: ZEF *
Expiring within one year R—FRE 309,545 358,947
23 TRADE PAYABLES 23 EREZERX
The ageing analysis of trade payables by invoice date is as follows: B SREFIREZ A BRRRTAT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1-30 days 1£30H 211,455 192,197
31-60 days 31£60H 8,037 15,088
61-90 days 61290H 5,172 15,778
Over 90 days 90H M E 1,766 3,453
226,430 226,516
2019 2018
—E-hF —EF-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Denominated in: RATE®BYE :
- RMB — AR 180,759 189,563
- HK$ — BT 5,813 12,158
- US$ —%7T 34,127 21,684
— Other currencies —EhEE 5,731 3,111
226,430 226,516
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24 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

24 EErEAREMENRE

2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Current; Vo2

Advance from customers (Note) EEENR M) 19,634 16,465
Other payables H Ath B A 5RIE 133,260 124,715
Accruals EEEA 179,272 158,066
332,166 299,246

Non-current: FERED -
Other payables H e IR 6,495 2,879
338,661 302,125

The carrying values of these balances approximate their fair values.

Note:

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 that was included
in the advance from customers balance at the beginning of the year amounted to
approximately HK$12,418,000 (2018: approximately HK$13,026,000). The Group
expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.

25 LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Loans from non-controlling interests are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The carrying value of these liabilities
approximate their fair values.

At 31 December 2019, the loans from non-controlling interests are
denominated in the following currencies:

25

U E AR REEEEL A FERS °

BT

BE_ZT-NF+_A=Z=+—HLEFE"
RENFATFPEN R GBI EBRAL
12,418,000 7t (=& — )\ 4 : 413,026,000
B AKERAN - FAERERAZM
EmABETHEANARZIHBTRORE

REFEREZZER

KEFEEEDE ZERBERIT BT
E&;Eﬁﬁ%’é?ﬂaﬁ HEEENKREE
HERNFERE

RZF-AF+=_HA=+—8 AT
EEIEREFERESZERWT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

HK$ BT 15,992 15,492
JPY H 1,454 -
17,446 15,492
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following expenses/(gains) are included in cost of sales,
distribution costs, administrative expenses and net impairment
losses/(reversal of impairment losses) on financial assets:

RERMBHRRME (F)

26 MMEE2 2R
SABERE S HRE - TEHAZR
SHEERERE (REBRED)F
BRI (K SR T

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Changes in inventories (Note 12) FEEH (Hiti2) 1,082,056 1,135,305
Auditor’s remuneration ZEETEN &
— Audit services —ZE R 2,680 2,680
— Non-audit services — IR EAR TS 320 381
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T Hb{E AR EESE (4 ite) - 1,970
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - BB MRENTTE
equipment (Note 7) (H1z%7) 45,915 40,932
Deprediation of right-of-use assets (Note 8(b)) {& FI#E & E T E (B1:78(b)) 8,764 -
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 10(b) 2 & = 69 #E 85 (K752 100b)) 2,184 1,635
Operating lease rental in respect of buildings EFHWEEHEHS - 14,603
Other lease expenses (Note 8(b))* HmBEEMZ (H280b)* 9,779 -
Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 72) PREGFEMEME (Wit12) 6,572 7,484
Direct written off of obsolete inventories BEEMERERE
(Note 12) (Btzt12) 1,132 2,760
Net impairment losses/(reversal of impairment & @& EREBE, (CRE
losses) on financial assets (Note 13) BB R E) FEE (Wt 13) 9,701 (11,351)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERF M (K/:228) 481,495 437,939
Transportation expenses EHEA 86,547 79,544
Exchange loss, net PE 5 BB 5 R 8,057 17,096
Advertising costs EERAR 15,814 14,857
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERRED
equipment (Note 34(b)) &8 (H1:134(b)) 180 532
Direct operating expenses arising from an REEERSRA
investment property that generates rental Z2—IEEEMEZ
income (Note 9) BEEERZ (Hi29) 49 50
Utilities expenses NAFX 25,314 24,416
* These expenses relate to short-term leases. They are directly charged as o SR ESHAEHEE HtELER

expenses and are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities

under HKFRS 16.

B ARX AT EETEMBREE
AlF1eSE TRt ERHERLE

27 OTHER INCOME 27 Hfug A
2019 2018
—EBE—NEF —E—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T TAT
Rental income (Note 9) He WA (B1579) 313 310
Income from sales of scrap materials HE BRI A 1,820 1,778
Government grant AT 4 B 7,052 2,898
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries = N R 1,280 -
Others Htt 649 1,070
11,114 6,056
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RERMBHRRME (F)

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

28 EEEANRAX

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and bonuses He -  TENMIEA 432,163 390,222
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RSN — A EHKETE 1,521 1,695
Welfare and other expenses B R E AR X 47,811 46,022
481,495 437,939

Five highest paid individuals LR E"%ﬁ@ﬂk:t

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 include five directors
(for the year ended 31 December 2018: five directors) whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 39.

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the year ended 31 December

2019 (for the year ended 31 December 2018: Nil).

HE-_Z—hhGF+-A=1+—HLEE"
$%@£%xm%%ki&%ﬂ%i$
(B2 N\E+-_A=1+—BILFE:
FRES) EHFMOWME RBERK =
39 -

BE_ZT-NFt-_A=+—BLFE"
$%@Iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%”)\ii§$bﬂﬁ§
AEEREEMBALEER MM K
AEXEBUMXNHBHEEBE2-F
—NF+_A=t—BIFE: &) -

29 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS B 75 WA R B 3 R AR

2019 2018

—E-hF —ZE-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Interest expenses on borrowings BEZAMERZ (2,630) (1,206)

Less: amount capitalised on qualifying assets ~ Jil | Si & BEREEE T

e 1,372 -

(1,258) (1,206)

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABZFERX (496) -
Financecosts ! MBRA (754 (1.200)
_Financeincome i 1505 877
Finance costs, net BTG P A 58 (239) (329)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interest expenses on BE_ZTZ—NAF+_A=t+—BItFE "

borrowings were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its

general borrowings of approximately 3.00%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

30 SUBSIDIARIES 30 B A
Particulars of  Proportion of ordinary Proportion of
issued share shares held directly ordinary shares
capital/ iR ERL A held by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities registered by by controlling
Name of company and kind of legal entity and place of operation capital parent  the Group interests
BRTRE/ FERER
A AR &Rz HEAR  HAKE FREER
DAER ARERER TERBREE TS #F  EERRE  EERE A
Ming Fai Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited ~ Investment holding; Hong Kong US$100 100% - -
liability company
PEERERAA RERARE - REER &R 100%7T 100% - -
BREFAH
Ming Fai Asia Pacific Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of hospitality supplies HK$10,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited company products and operating supplies
and equipment; Hong Kong
REZAERAA R ARALAT HEEEHEREERR 10,000,0007% T - 100% -
EERmREE FA
Ming Fai Enterprise International Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of hospitality supplies HK$1,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited company products and operating supplies
and equipment; Hong Kong
REEZER FR EREMARA HEEEHEREERR 1,000,000 7T - 100% -
BRAR HERMNKE BE
Ming Fai Industrial (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC, limited Manufacturing and trading of HK$50,000,000 - 100% -
Company Limited liability company hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; the PRC
WEEE(RIARRE  hE AREALAHF RERHEREMEREERR 50,000,005 7 - 100% -
RELEARREE  PE
H-Square Hospitality Total Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading of operating supplies and HK$1,000 - 100% -
Solution Company Limited company equipment; Hong Kong
HEA B EREERAR EE  AREELA HEZERMRRE BB 1,000/ 7T - 100% -
Shenzhen H-Square Hospitality ~ The PRC, limited liability Trading of operating supplies and ~ HK$50,000,000 - 100% -
Total Solution Company company equipment; the PRC
Limited
MIH=MEELEERAT  HE EREAAF HELERMRER: F 50,000,000 70 - 100% -
IKONE Design Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000 - 100% -
company in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services;
Hong Kong
TERMVARHERAR B4 EREEAA RESEERRG  LER 1,000%7 - 100% -

REEENR B
EHRERY B

39



Ming Fai International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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RERMBHRRME (F)

30 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30 B2 @

Particulars of  Proportion of ordinary Proportion of
issued share shares held directly ordinary shares
capital/ s EBRLA held by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities registered by by controlling
Name of company and kind of legal entity and place of operation capital parent the Group interests
BRTRE/ FERER
EMALEHR dftEsz  HBAR  HARE FEER
DAER HRERER TEXBREEMEY #F  EERE  EEBE 2 LAl
IKONE Design (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Provision of professional solutions HK$1,000,000 - 100% -
Limited company in product design, corporate
branding, gifts & premiums, and
event management services;
the PRC
éuukﬁ'@ﬂ/%ﬁ HEl - BREEAR REERERRT  LER 1,000,00077T - 100% -
(R BRA mEEERR  Bo
EERBIRT - E
Ming Fai Innovative Skin Care  Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and trading of HK$100,000 - 100% -
Lab Limited company hospitality supplies products;
Hong Kong
PEAMERHAMER B BREELAF BERHEEEMRE 100,000 T - 100% -
N mEEm: BE
Wayoutokushin Co., Ltd. Japan, limited liability Product development and trading ~ JPY140,000,000 - 51% 49%
company of body care products; Japan
HAeHNGEE A% BREARE SEEEERFRRES B 140,000,005 E - 51% 49%
Quality Amenities Singapore, limited liability Trading of hospitality supplies Singapore dollar - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited company products and operating supplies 100,000
and equipment; Singapore
Quality Amenities MR BRALAR HEEEHEREERR 100,000 - 100% -
Supply Pte. Limited 2EAMREE  FNE Mg
Teng Xun Limited Cambodia, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of US$4,000,000 - 100% -
company hospitality supplies products and
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; Cambodia
Teng Xun Limited RBE ARAMLAF HERBEBEHEREERR  4,000,000%7 - 100% -
HELBRRRERE AR
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies  India, limited liability Manufacturing and trading of Indian Rupee - 51% 49%
Private Limited company hospitality supplies products and 238,300,530
trading of operating supplies and
equipment; India
Oriental Lotus Hotel Supplies 1% - GRE T4 BERREREEEREERR 38,300,530 - 51% 49%
Private Limited HERERARMREE  OE DEEL
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BEERERARAA T AFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 31

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

RERMBHRRME (F)

RSB

RiFa2mEbEmERMNG (BE) MG
MERS

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T

Current income tax: BVERFTIS R -
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNER 20,546 18,588
— PRC enterprise income tax — BB EEN 12,995 12,783
— Other overseas profits tax — H A INFIEHE 906 1,404
Adjustments in respect of prior year BEFERAE 920 (100)
35,367 32,675
Deferred income tax (Note 117) BIEFTISEL (Mfat11) (345) 2,175
35,022 34,850

Taxation has been provided at the appropriate rates prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Hong Kong profits tax, PRC enterprise income tax, Singapore
corporate income tax and Cambodia corporate income tax are
calculated at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%), 25% (2018: 25%), 17%
(2018: 17%) and 20% (2018: 20%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 respectively.

Taxes on other overseas profits have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
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AN

iy

31

MEmAME (F)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The difference between the actual income tax charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the amounts

31 FIBHBAXZ @

FAerERERTERMERXHER
B A B R g R AT AT S B AR M At B AT

which would result from applying the enacted tax rates to profit SERIERUERNAT :
before income tax can be reconciled as follows:
2019 2018
ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit before income tax RTS8 R R E F 127,102 130,931
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZEANSREERA
applicable to profits in the respective A EE =R
countries STE/IE 21,722 23,939
Income not subject to tax BARBAWA (6,915) (6,020)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes PARMHE IR IE 8 7 2 7,455 7,724
Utilisation of prior year tax losses BRBATFEE 2 MBEEIE (121) (111
Adjustments in respect of prior year W FERAK 920 (100)
Tax losses for which no deferred income N RIERBRLEMSREE
tax asset was recognised EOEi =Y R ] 11,961 9,418
Tax charge MBEH 35,022 34,850

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 17% per annum
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the year ended 31
December 2018: 18% per annum). The change is caused by a
change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective
countries.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxation profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$196,965,000
(31 December 2018: approximately HK$188,823,000) as at 31
December 2019 to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses expire in the following years:

HE-T-NF+-A=t—BAL&EE
PR B E AT E17% (BE=
T N\F+-A=+—ALFE:EF
18%) o Bt % B2 T B 8 A B B 22 A
2 FECEVEST P

RAEFTIS R A & J0 A FE A8 B8 B 75 F 25 /)
BRARERF cFERMATEE 2
HEEBEEBEER - R-_ZTZ—hLE+_-A
=t+—H AEEZAERREBERLY
196,965,000 T (ZE— NF+ = A
=+—H :49188,823,000/ t) * A &
HARERTBA - L EFHBEEBER
T 5 H g

2019 2018

—B-NF —E-N\EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

In the first to fifth years inclusive F—FEELF (BREEMRT) 125,503 117,524
In the sixth to tenth years inclusive ERFEFETF(PEEREMT) 1,464 -
No expiry date 2 & m B HA 69,998 71,299
196,965 188,823
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

RERMBHRRME (F)

32 ERER

(a)

2
ARBHEEANEESRERNEF A
ARBHEAEBEBNRAFAE
BOTEBRZMEFHHBAE -

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\F
Profit attributable to owners of the RRTHEB AEEEF
Company (HK$°000) (F%1T) 97,936 100,249
Weighted average number of ordinary EEBITERRINE TS
shares in issue (thousands) (FAR) 726,910 723,477
Basic earnings per share attributable &2 T #EHE AEAS
to owners of the Company BREXEF
(HK cents) (GEAl) 13.5 13.9
Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has
share options as dilutive potential shares. A calculation was
done to determine the number of shares that could have
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market price of the shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to the outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated as above was
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

Annual Report 2019

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 32 BREFN @
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) &8 @
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Profit attributable to owners of the PAN/NSIE ¥ = DN L bl
Company (HK$'000) (F#T) 97,936 100,249
Weighted average number of ordinary BT T B e
shares in issue (thousands) EHE(FAR) 726,910 723,477
Adjustment for: HEE
— Share options (thousands) — R (F17) 2,009 4,886
Weighted average number of ordinary BREE RN T BR
shares for diluted earnings per share 2 INREE
(thousands) (FH) 728,919 728,363
Diluted earnings per share attributable 742 T #H A E{L
to owners of the Company BREBERER
(HK cents) (El) 13.4 13.8
33 DIVIDENDS 33 RE

On 29 May 2019, a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders. Total dividend of approximately HK$36,713,000 was
paid out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

On 28 August 2019, the Board resolved to approve an interim
dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the six months ended 30 June
2019. Total dividend of approximately HK$11,014,000 was paid

out, including dividend paid to the shares held for the Scheme.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK3.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of approximately HK$22,028,000 was resolved by the Board to
propose on 25 March 2020, which is subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 27 May
2020. This proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
in the consolidated financial statements, but reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 31 December

2019.
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PAEERERBERLAR —ZE-HLFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

34 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3 MERERERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (a) REFFIBHRAIGERELE
cash generated from operations XBFESHRENYER
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Profit before income tax RETFTSELRT & A 127,102 130,931
Adjustments for: EEHETSA%E
— Amortisation of land use rights — - b {5 PR R 5
(Note 6) (H1it6) - 1,970
— Depreciation of property, plant and —YE - HER
equipment (Note 7) REBITEKE7) 45,915 40,932
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEENE
(Note 8(b)) (Ht7#8(b)) 8,764 -
— Amortisation of intangible assets — B EEHH
(Note 10(b)) (KtzE100b)) 2,184 1,635
— Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries 3= UENE P &
(Note 27) (Btzt27) (1,280) -
— Loss on disposal of property, —HEWE - HEX
plant and equipment RBREE
(Note 34(b)) (K73£34(b)) 180 532
— Finance income (Note 29) — B UR A (B73£29) (1,515) (877)
— Finance costs (Note 29) — B RA (f7229) 1,754 1,206
— Provision for obsolete inventories —RETFTEMNEE 6,572 7,484
— Direct written off for obsolete —HEMERETE
inventories (Note 12) (K1az12) 1,132 2,760
— Net impairment losses/(reversal of —eREEREESR
impairment losses) on financial assets / CRBEEERD)
(Note 13) RER (H17E13) 9,701 (11,351)
— Share of profit of an associated — JE{h — B & A A
company S ) (897) (1,948)
— Share of profit of a joint venture —ER—EAEE
Pl (56) (95)
— Fair value gain on an investment ——EEREWMEY
property (Note 9) NEEW S (H7E9) - (473)
Changes in working capital: LEECEE)
— Inventories - 58 (38,130) (3,421)
— Trade and bills receivables — ERE SRR LRE 59,731 (81,574)
— Other assets — HthEE (12,649) (18,814)
— Other financial assets — R HA AR 2
at amortised cost HEfhomEE (342) (1,001)
— Trade payables — ERE SR 4,059 5,435
— Accruals and — B ERAR
other payables Eo A &< RRIE 42,130 31,580
— Amount due from an associated — YR E R A
company IR (1,922) 5,013
— Amounts due from joint ventures — A EDEKIE 230 (206)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFRENERS 252,663 109,718
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REMBRRME (FE)

34 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

3 MEBRERERME @

(b) HEMXE - BMERRERE

equipment MIE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RGBS RERT  HEWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: ME REEREHRIBETE
2019 2018
—E-NF —\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET AT
Net book amount: RMEFE :
— Property, plant and equipment —ME - WEREE
(Note 7) (Bt5t7) 4,985 1,000
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERZEHEZ
equipment (Note 26) &1 (K17t26) (180) (532)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HE¥% - WE L&
and equipment F1S 308 4,805 468
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) BEBZHER
Liabilities from financing activities
REMEEBZER
Loan from
Lease  non-controlling
Borrowings liabilities interests Total
FERER N
BE HESE MEH @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$\'0070 HK$\'0070
TET T T THT
Net debt as at R=ZB-NE
1 January 2018 -A-BzFaf 22,170 - 14,492 36,662
Cash flows Bene 12,418 - 1,000 13,418
Foreign exchange adjustments HNE B - - - -
Net debt as at RZE-NE+ZR
31 December 2018 =+-A2E8E 34,588 - 15,492 50,080
Recognised on adoption of REMBBYBRE
HKFRS 16 EAE 1657 LR - 5,224 - 5,224
Net debt at RZZE-\F+_A
31 December 2018, =t-RZFEE"
as restated mE7| 34,588 5,224 15,492 55,304
Cash flows Beng 28,832 (5,916) 500 23,416
Addition due to business REREHMAE
combination (Note 36) () i/f&%) 1,972 435 1,460 3,867
Addition to lease liabilities HEEBERE - 8,050 - 8,050
Finance costs (Note 29) SR (413229 1,258 49 - 1,754
Foreign exchange adjustments INE TR (227) (152) (6) (385)
Net debt as at RZZE-AFE+ZR
31 December 2019 St-RZEAfR 66,423 8,137 17,446 92,006
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AR B R IR B R 2 A

—E-NEFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments of the
Group were approximately HK$45,406,000 (31 December 2018:
approximately HK$38,298,000).

RERMBHRRME (F)

BEARAERE

WN_ZE—AFE+_A=+—8 A&H
H) & 7N A HE 4945,406,000%8 7T (ZZE — N\
F+—-H=+—H : 438,298,000/ 7T) °

35

2019 2018
—B-NF —E-N\EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTH T THT
Contracted but not provided for in the ERTHMEN R dr & B 7%
consolidated financial statements MR A B 45,406 38,298
BUSINESS COMBINATION 36 ¥Ka6f

On 31 May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 51%
equity interest in Wayoutokushin in Japan by allotment of new
shares at a total cash consideration of JPY71,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,057,000). Pursuant to the share allotment
agreement, the purpose of the acquisition is for the development
of hospitality supplies business and personal care products
development in Japan. Wayoutokushin was principally engaged in
product development and trading of body care products.
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REMBRRME (FE)

36 (S /)

ENRERMEBEERAARZABR
WEEANEEQFER TR

36 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The consideration paid and the provisional fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are
summarised in the table below:

HK$'000
FHT
Consideration RE
Cash paid ENEe 5,057
Provisional fair value of recognised BRI EERFIAEEEZ
amounts of identifiable assets ERASEZEELAFE
acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIER 4,101
Other financial assets at amortised cost HEEK AT Rz e B E 103
Inventories FE 408
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) M - BB R (HaE7) 341
Intangible asset (Note 10(b)) mLARE (Hat10b)) 37
Right-of-use assets (Note 8) ER#EE (Hits8) 435
Lease liabilities (Note 8) HEBEHZ8) (435)
Borrowings BE (1,972)
Loan from a non-controlling interest REFERER 2ER (1,460)
Accruals and other payables FERT & PR I H i FE < 5RI8 (1,395)
Total net identifiable assets ARRFEELE 163
Share of total net identifiable assets RNEE LA g R
of the Group FEEBE 83
Goodwill EES 4,974
5,057
Cash consideration paid ENBEeRE 5,057
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEmIRE RIS EBEIER (4,101)
Net cash outflow on acquisition during the year 4 A U4 B B 1935 € 7 15 58 956

PR 44,974,000 7T TY A 4E N2 B 27
Fras ok 2 1 B et B8 AN & B UK BE 5

The goodwill of approximately HK$4,974,000 represents the
synergy attributable to the Group’s business, including the
workforce and synergies expected to arise after the Group's WHEBARTESRELEZSE N RBRK
acquisition of the new subsidiary. None of the goodwill recognised mo EBHBIEEBREER BIEMRA
is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. 128 -

AN £2 ] DA 51 Y B 1 2 S (B 3K 3 A A
SERENEERAKIFEENRD B

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in an acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired EXEBRANWEERIEEREZ - K
entity’s net identifiable assets. The Group elected to recognise the SEEERRHBEKRENHIFEED
non-controlling interest in Wayoutokushin at its proportionate share O BRN MG EE 2 FIERER -

of the acquired net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The gross contractual amount for other financial assets at amortised
cost is approximately HK$103,000 of which none is expected to be
uncollectible.

The revenue and loss included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income since 31 May 2019 contributed
by Wayoutokushin were approximately HK$1,203,000 and
approximately HK$1,985,000 respectively. Had Wayoutokushin
been consolidated from 1 January 2019, the consolidated pro-forma
revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the
Group would have been approximately HK$2,043,421,000 and
approximately HK$91,863,000 respectively.

The fair value of the acquired net identifiable assets is provisional
pending receipt of the final valuations for those relevant assets.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control.

The ultimate controlling parties of the Group are Mr. CHING Chi
Fai, Mr. CHING Chi Keung, Mr. LIU Zigang and Ms. CHAN Yim
Ching.

(a) Significant related party transactions

The Group has carried out significant transactions with the
following related parties:

Name of related party

BELHE &8 TRERED

RERMBHRRME (F)

36 XS/t

37

Principal business activities

BEBERNANREZEMBEREEZAY
4AE8#9103,000/8 T © TEERE P BEE T A]
Y [B] 2 I8 o

MEEEE-ZE—NLFRA=+T—HR
FAGREEZAKER WA REES 5
491,203,000 7T & %71,985,000/% 7T °
WrABEEE -_E—hAE—A—B &2
REAR AEEEE_ZT—NF+=
A=+ BLEFEZEAEEZSRAR
Yis F FE 5 Bl 492,043,421,0007 7T & 4
91,863,000 7T ©

BRI R FEEZAFEBEE
TG ZERREEEZREETAEE

BREL X5
A — T3 B 4 B — 75 - S E B Y
REERELTEESALEN  DAH

77 o REB| K REFINA R KRGS
BARE T o

AEBZREEH T AESELE 2
Hmas  BFRLEERR®ELL -

() EXEAHERS
REBGED TR T ETEAR
5

Relationship with the Group
BEREEZER

Ming Fai Plastic Industrial
Company

PIEERBEE AT

Quality Amenities

Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.

iBridge Technology

BEER %

Manufacturing of plastic products
(Ceased manufacturing of plastic
products since April 2003)

WEBBER (4 -FF=
U 4 LB 9B E

Trading of hospitality supplies
products and operating supplies
and equipment

HEREREREEMREE
FAm K&

Provision of information technology
services

REEMBHEIRS

Partnership owned by
Mr. CHING Chi Fai,
Mr. YEUNG Tin Loi and
Mr. CHING Chi Keung
HIEEIEAEE BRREER
BEREEMERNABEE

Associated company of the Group

AEBOBEAT

eell

Joint venture of the Group

AEBENEEDRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37 BBt RE RS @)
(a) Significant related party transactions () EXBEBAIRS (@

(Continued)

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following significant
transactions with related parties:

BRRErE MBS RERH D TR E
EH AKRBERMBITETHEX
RBMT

2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET T
(i) Sales of goods () EEE®
—to Quality Amenities — T"Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. 18,379 16,094
— to iBridge Technology — TRIEERX 242 201
(i Purchase of goods (i) BEE M
— from iBridge Technology —BREERE 165 150
(i) Rental charged (i) TFIF T WEREE 2
- by Ming Fai Plastic Industrial — BB R
Company BERNA 1,321 1,474
(iv) Purchase of services rendered from  (iv) B & T 5l 2 {49 IR 75
— information technology —BEERE
service charges from R ZEH
iBridge Technology B AR - 3

Sales of goods are transacted at prices mutually agreed
between the parties.

Purchases of goods and services are transacted at prices
mutually agreed between the parties.

Purchase of intangible assets are transacted at prices mutually
agreed between the parties.

The Group leased certain properties from Ming Fai Plastic
Industrial Company as one of its production bases in the PRC.
The transaction is carried out at prices agreed between the
parties.
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PAEERERBERLAR —ZE-HLFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37 BEAEXRZ @
(b) Key management compensation (b) EEEEAESME
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, ¥ - (580 - EfERL
other allowances and benefits-in-kind KIES BRI 10,452 10,330
Contributions to pension plans RIREETEIfE R 112 114
10,564 10,444
(c) Year end balances arising from sales and (c) SHERBEERNWFARESRS
purchase of goods
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the BRRGE I RREMmI D AT
reporting period in relation to transactions with related TEEI N THEEEF 2RS4
parties, unless elsewhere disclosed in the consolidated BRI EHIRIAREGEE o

financial statements.

2019 2018
ZE-hF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT
Prepayment to iBridge Technology BT RIS E B FIE
(Note) (Htet) - 78
Amounts due from JEW AN & 5 ;RIB
— Quality Amenities — Quality Amenities
Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd. Supply (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(Note 14) (Bizt14) 5,046 3,125
— iBridge Technology (Note) - BISE R (B 77) 35 168
Note: Mt -
As at 31 December 2019, the balance represents the amount due from R-_E—hhE+_A=+—8 ' EKA
iBridge Technology of approximately HK$35,000 (2018: approximately 88 BHE 435,000 7T (ZF —/\F : 4
HK$168,000) arising from sales of goods. These balances were unsecured 168,000/ 7T) Z EAREE T HEEM ©
in nature, interest-free and denominated in RMB. W EEHRTDERT EFERAARE
FTE -
As at 31 December 2018, the balance represents prepayment to iBridge R-_E—NEFE+_A=+—H8 BEFA
Technology of approximately HK$78,000 arising from purchase of 18 3 R} £y 3% 18 4978,000/8 T 2 &SR E £
information technology services. These balances were unsecured in nature, BEEBEMBRRYG - L E 46T EIR
interest-free and denominated in RMB. o EF B RIAARKEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

38 X RIEEEBERKRMHEE

OF THE COMPANY 5 E)
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December R=-ZE-NhE+=-A=+—H
2019 ZENTREERBER
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARNKRE 235,673 235,673
Total non-current assets FRBEEHE 235,673 235,673
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets HitmE&E 198 282
Other financial assets at TS AR B BR 2
amortised cost HEhemEE 73 50
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGRS E] 789,589 766,500
Amount due from a joint venture JEU—fEE & EFIA 38 38
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS ZEEIER 5,243 22,615
Total current assets REBEEMLE 795,141 789,485
Total assets EEHATE 1,030,814 1,025,158
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners ZA2QFEHA A
of the Company Bz
Share capital A% A 7,343 7,282
Shares held under the Scheme SEITEAE KRG (6,051) (6,051)
Share premium AR 19 5 (B 613,261 609,548
Other reserves HihmE A 407,602 404,452
Total equity R 1,022,155 1,015,231
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B PR B Eh FE A 767 501
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT BT /BB 2 B 3 IE 7,560 9,104
Tax payable fE ST I8 146 146
Dividends payable JE % B 186 176
Total current liabilities REBEEHEE 8,659 9,927
Total liabilities EE8E 8,659 9,927
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,030,814 1,025,158
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of KRBl BEBBEERR-_ZT_FTF=H4
Directors on 25 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf. —t+RBEKEE $"“°“‘?H:/Ej£ EEl LAT% EXN
REE o

CHING Chi Fai
Director

EF
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CHING Tsun Wah
BhE

Director

EF



AEE PR IR AR A A

==

=3

= —

NFFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBHEEME (F)

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

VAN

iy

(=)

38 X RIEEEBERRMHEE

285 @

Note A: Reserve movement of the Company for MizZA: BZ=-_ZFE—hL&E+ =
the year ended 31 December 2019 A=+ —BLFEEX
ARHERE
Share-
Merger based
reserve compensation Retained
MNote) reserves earnings Total
aftfE  UROGZAN .
(Hizt) MemE REER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT THT FTHET AT
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZE-NF-A—-Az&& 224,147 32,332 149,462 405,941
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year RNEEHF - - 49,209 49,209
Total comprehensive income 2ENEAR - - 49,209 49,209
Final dividend relating to 2017 “E-LEEZREKE - - (36,206) (36,206)
Interim dividend relating to 2018 “E-N\FEZHHRE - - (14,492) (14,492)
Exercise of share options 1Tl B R - (820) 820 -
Balance at R-ZB-N\E

31 December 2018 tZA=t+-Az&H 224,147 31,512 148,793 404,452
Representing: RE:

Reserve HiE 368,024

Final dividend proposed BERERE 36,428
Balance at R-Z-N\§

31 December 2018 TZA=T-AZEH 404,452
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-NF-f—Bz&&H 224,147 31,512 148,793 404,452
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year AEEEF - - 50,534 50,534
Total comprehensive income ZHERREE - - 50,534 50,534
Final dividend relating to 2018 ZE-N\FEZRBRS - - (36,442) (36,442)
Interim dividend relating to 2019 “E-NEEzFHRE - - (10,942) (10,942)
Exercise of share options TEBRE - (3,192) 3,192 -
Lapse of share options SR - (423) 423 -
Balance at R-B-nE

31 December 2019 TZA=t-HZE&H 224,147 27,897 155,558 407,602
Representing: &

Reserve i 385,574

Final dividend proposed BaARERS 22,028
Balance at R-ZB-h&

31 December 2019 +t-RB=t+-Bz&8% 407,602

Note: ez -

AEENAFRBEREARNREKE R
BABEEFNBARNR ST LEAHITE
ERVBERBRAA HSIEMEENARN
mERERE

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the cost of
investment in subsidiaries and nominal value of the share capital and share
premium of the subsidiaries in 2007 arising from the application of merger
accounting in consolidating the financial information of the affected entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

39 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 39 EERFETHRAEBZHMS
EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to Directors of REBMEN  EBREAAREZSHHE B
the Company by the Group are as follows: FEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Fees we 1,350 1,350
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other ¥ - (T £ - EfhERL
allowances and benefits-in-kind KIES EBFE 9,852 9,730
Contributions to pension plans RIREET AR 112 114
11,314 11,194
The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HE_Z-hF+_A=t+—HILEFE"
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHRAEHMSLAT
Employer's
Share-based contribution to
Discretionary payment  aretirement
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense benefit scheme Total

MRS EEREK
XfH BAEED

ESng we e BERa Bx #% 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TER TR TR TR TRR TR

Executive Directors (Note (i)  HI{TES (#22())

Mr. CHING Chi Fai 2EBEAE 120 1,304 1,150 - 18 2,592
Mr. CHING Chi Keung EFt P 120 790 710 - 18 1,638
Mr. LIU Zigang 2l FRI%E 120 948 968 - 40 2,076
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah REELE 120 790 718 - 18 1,646
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEELE 120 1411 1,063 - 18 2,612

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan AT E 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BiRELE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong RERTE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson g b 150 - - - _ 150
Non-Executive Director FHTES

Ms. CHAN Yim Ching RE&BEL+ 150 - - - - 150
Total ok 1,350 5,243 4,609 - 112 11,314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (F)

39 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 39 EERFETHRAEBZHMS
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)

The emoluments of each Director and chief executive of the HEZT-N\F+_A=+—HBILLFE -

Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows: RAFBBERFETHRAEHMSLAT
Employer's
Share-based  contribution to
Discretionary payment a retirement

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses expense  benefit scheme Total

By EERERK
ffE) EAEHEI

ESiA i FE BB 53 3578 it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TBT TR TR TR

Executive Directors (Note (i)  HI{TES (#22())

Mr. CHING Chi Fai BEBRAE 120 1,263 1,200 - 18 2,601
Mr. CHING Chi Keung BEart 120 764 717 - 18 1,619
Mr. LIU Zigang Bl FRIEE 120 919 963 - ) 2,044
Mr. CHING Tsun Wah BRERLE 120 764 717 - 18 1,619
Mr. KEUNG Kwok Hung ZEERE 120 1,367 1,056 - 18 2,561

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. HUNG Kam Hung Allan s EAE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. MA Chun Fung Horace BiREEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. NG Bo Kwong REAEE 150 - - - - 150
Mr. SUN Eric Yung Tson FEmEE 150 - - - - 150
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. CHAN Yim Ching BREER L 150 - - - - 150
Total ek 1,350 5,077 4,653 - 114 11,194
Note: Biat -
(i) The role of chief executive officer has been performed collectively by all 0) TRERZEBERZEHTES (2
the Executive Directors, including the Chairman of the Company. AABERE) LFRETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (FE)

40 EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Following the COVID-19 outbreak, the People’s Government
of Guangdong Province of the PRC has postponed the time
for resumption of work after the Chinese New Year holiday.
The Group's production base in the PRC has resumed to work
immediately follow the extended Chinese New Year holiday. The
production base in Cambodia was not affected. It is expected that
the Group's hospitality supplies business and OS&E business would
be inevitably affected due to the unplanned deferments of orders as
the epidemic has continued to spread and impacted global business
and economic activities.

The Group has implemented a series of precautionary and control
measures to combat the impacts brought by the epidemic, such as
switching some of the production lines to produce anti-epidemic
products such as alcoholic instant hand sanitizers in the PRC and
Hong Kong. The Group has also installed face mask production
equipment at its production base in the PRC which commenced
production in March 2020.

As at the date on which this set of consolidated financial statements
were issued, the impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Group’s
customers’ financial positions and the macro-economic conditions
as a whole are still uncertain, thus the Group is unable to quantify
the related financial effects. However, it is noted that the purchase
orders of the Group’s hospitality supplies business and OS&E
business has dropped as compared with the corresponding period
of 2019. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 and perform further assessment on its impact and
take relevant measures.
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BREMRRESH

ZFECOVID- 19K BIR#EE - PEERE
ARBFELEREEMFRBPERELR
Bl A"EEURTENEEREMDNE
REENFRAKIZAET - (L RRIH
RMAEEMIT RARIFE -BHAE
B BEEHEREBREERRERE
XEBBEUREIIFE RREESE
ERIFELHRARREELY  UH
FTEHIREEIAI IR -

ANEE S B — R FA L R AE 58 5 A
HRRBEwRzZZE fnETBERE
BHRBE O EEREENZR M (PI2E
BETR) AKBTEETFBEEER
KEROSEERBIR_FT_FTF=A
BREE °

Rt & B BHskExz T %R -
COVID-19% BB B W A & B &% P B #%5 K
NMEBEBRBKEERGE 2 ENFER
BEM ARAEEELSCEBEYE
FERM BER/IERASEEEEHR
EREBREERMRRXBEB 2RBE
FIER-_ZE-NERBATHR - AE BB
4B Y)FECOVID- 19 B2 BB IR
E—DEEFEWHEREBEE -
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